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NAEER
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Executive Directors:
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Corporate Profile
NGV

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited (“Sino Harbour” or the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is a
property developer focused on residential properties in Jiangxi
Province, the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"). The
residential projects developing by the Group are coupled with
retail shops and other commercial office premises.

The Group's first project was Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan (&
E 4 AEHE), a residential and commercial development in
Honggu Tan Central District of Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC. Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan occupies a total site area
of approximately 80,521 square metres (“sq. m."”), comprising
residential and commercial development with an aggregate saleable
gross floor area (“GFA") of approximately 304,839 sg. m.

In 2009, the Group further explored and capitalised opportunities
in Fuzhou (#E /) , Jiangxi Province, the PRC to develop the
second project Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan (M 3 45 =
BT ) . Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan occupies a total site area of
approximately 190,753 sg. m. with a planned aggregate saleable
GFA of approximately 297,955 sq. m.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2012, the Group's joint
venture Jiangxi Ganghong Investment Co., Ltd. CIPBRELAER
‘A A)) started the pre-sale of Yichun Royal Lake City (B &%)
in Yichun, Jiangxi Province, the PRC. Yichun Royal Lake City occupies
a total site area of approximately 607,084 sq. m. with a planned
aggregate saleable GFA of approximately 1,244,115 sg. m.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Group
commenced the development of Nanchang Sino Harbour Island
Villa (F§ &8 # 5 ), formerly known as Nanchang Dingxun
project (B & & IEF ) , in Nanchang. Nanchang Sino Harbour
Island Villa occupies a total site area of approximately 719,547.5
sg. m. with a planned aggregate saleable GFA of approximately
1,004,788 sq. m.

Going forward, the Group will make an effort to replicate its
successful investment model in property projects with strong
potential elsewhere in the PRC in order to generate better
growth.
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Financial Highlights
MR E

(RMB’000)
(AR®F )

(RMB’000)
(AR®F )

123,911 126,444

101,316

340,198

196,920

(11,891)

(RMB’000)
(AR¥F )

1,191,064
1,096,404

735,524
616,493

370,313

(RMB'000)
(AR¥TX)
240,917

28.6%
25.5%

27.0%

O 24.3%

92,763
137,157 (Restated)
(€27 7.3%
(Restated)
KE5)

34,992

29,064
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Chairlady’s Statement
EREBE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) the results in the financial performance of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2013.

In the year ended 31 March 2013, revenue was mainly derived
from the sales of residential properties of Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting
Yuan (#E/NEEZEFERT ) and Yichun Royal Lake City ( E&##H )
and the sales of commercial units of Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan
(M B4 AELEE) . Revenue from commercial and residential
properties increased steadily in the year ended 31 March 2013
compared with the previous financial year. During the year under
review, profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to RMB126.4 million, representing an increase of 24.8% over
that of last year.

In March 2013, the Group succeeded in acquiring a parcel of land
for commercial development in Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province.
The land would be developed into a commercial complex with
office premises and retail shops. The board (the “Board”) of
directors (the “Directors”) believes the investment value of the
land will continue to rise as it is located in a prime location in
Hangzhou.
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Looking ahead, the property market in the PRC will continue to
be affected by the PRC government’s restrictive measures. The
restrictive measures will continue to have greater impact on the
residential market as compared with the commercial market as a
whole.

The Group will continue its focus in the third- and fourth-tier
cities by exploring new opportunities and diversify our property
portfolio so as to alleviate the impact to the Group by the
restrictive measures. All in all, the Group is confident with the
PRC’s property market due to urbanisation and sustainable
economic growth of the PRC.

APPRECIATION

Finally, I would like to express my sincere appreciation to our
Shareholders and investors for your support and confidence in
the Group. | would also like to express my gratitude to the Board
for their guidance and to thank the Group’s management and
employees for their diligence and contributions to the Group.

CHAN Heung Ling
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEE R wWE D

REVENUE

During the year under review, the Group achieved revenue
of approximately RMB559.9 million mainly from the sales of
residential units of Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan (#E N 2 £ g2
B2 ) and Yichun Royal Lake City (EZE## %), together with
the commercial units of Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan (7 & 4L
A 9LhE) . Revenue increased by approximately 8.7% over the
previous financial year. The total GFA of the residential and
commercial units (excluding car parking spaces) sold in the year
under review amounted to approximately 99,983 sg. m.

The following table sets out an analysis of the revenue for (i)
residential properties, (i) commercial properties, and (iii) car

A

REFEER  AEERERALAARES5998
B XERABEEMNEEERREEDAR
ZEEEh  ERESAIAYNE Y BB A
BE—BERENS 7% ROBEEEEEER
BB (FREEEA) @RETRL A99,983

TREJIEBEFEANEEDE (IBEDER
(iiffE B2 WA DT

parking spaces during the year under review:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012 % change
BE BE
—E—-= —E-=F
=A=+-8 =ZA=+-8
LEE LEE BRI
(i) Residential (i) F=E
- GFA sold (in sq. m.) —-BERERE
(A7 KET) 92,210 60,258 +53.0%
- Average selling price —FHER
(RMB per sq. m.) (B¥AHK
AR) 4,510 5,843 -22.8%
— Revenue (approx. RMB'000) —WA (AR
F) 415,903 352,116 +18.1%
(i) Commercial (i) [SES
- GFA sold (in sq. m.) -EEEEmE
(A7 KEt) 7,773 3,849 +101.9%
— Average selling price —FHER
(RMB per sq. m.) (B¥HXK
AR®) 16,426 27,988 -413%
— Revenue (approx. RMB'000) —WA(WARE
Fit) 127,681 107,713 +18.5%
(i) Car parking spaces (i)  BFEA
— Revenue (approx. RMB’000) —A(BARE
Fit) 16,334 55,352 -70.5%
Total revenue (approx. RMB'000) WABE (WARETT) 559,918 515,181
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWED T

COST OF SALES AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Cost of sales increased from approximately RMB300.2 million in
the previous financial year to approximately RMB369.3 million
for the year under review. In the previous financial year, a greater
portion of revenue was derived from the delivery of commercial
units and car parking spaces which have a higher gross profit
margin compared with the greater proportion of residential units
sold during the year under review. Consequently, gross profit
margin decreased from 41.7% for the previous financial year to
34.1% for the year under review.

OTHER INCOME

Other income increased from approximately RMB15.8 million
(restated) in the previous financial year to approximately
RMB41.0 million in the year under review. The increase mainly
represented the increase in net fair value gain of the Group’s
investment properties and properties held under development
upon transfer to investment properties during the year under
review.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses increased from approximately
RMB3.9 million (restated) in the previous financial year to
approximately RMB13.3 million in the year under review. The
higher selling expenses in the year under review was mainly due
to the increase in marketing expenses for Yichun Royal Lake City

(EHEMEHAR) .

HEMARENR

HERARE—TEHAREI02BEETER
ZREFEHARK3693BET R LF—8F-
WABBRAH D REBGESBMREEL 2T
HEEMERRAEBEFEERALAZEHEFE
BRIzEFNEAES Al EFMERE—HF2
AN T%RPECBEFEZ234.1% °

HA WA

H AR E—MFHOARKEI8EET (KE
FNBEENEFEOARBMN0BEL ZIER
TEROBEFERNAKREREVMELBRETY
XEREREMEZ N FEREFRRIEM-

HERDHER

HERNDHERM L —MFOARKE3IIBET
(REVENECMEFEHOARBIZIEET
CEFEHEERRS T EANRERMHNE TS
EIHE ML NPT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEE R wWE D

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses increased to approximately RMB20.2
million in the year under review from approximately RMB15.0
million (restated) in the previous financial year. The increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in staff costs, professional &
consultancy expenses and land use tax of approximately RMB1.2
million, RMB1.0 million and RMB2.8 million respectively.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a cumulative effect of the foregoing factors, the Group had
recorded a profit before tax of approximately RMB198.2 million
in the year under review, representing a decrease of 1.3% from
approximately RMB200.7 million in the previous financial year.

Income tax expense decreased from approximately RMB99.9
million in the previous financial year to approximately RMB73.0
million in the year under review. The decrease in income tax
was mainly derived from the decrease in Land Appreciation Tax
("LAT") resulting from the lower assessable value of properties
delivered to the customers during the year under review.
According to the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT and
relevant implementation rules, an entity deriving a profit from
selling or transferring properties shall be liable to pay LAT at
progressive rates from 30% to 60% of the appreciated value of
the property, with certain exemptions available for the sale of
ordinary residential properties if the appreciated value does not
exceed 20% of the deductible items as defined in the relevant
LAT regulations. Sales of commercial properties are not eligible
for such exemption.

As a result, profit for the year attributed to the owners of the
Company increased by approximately 24.8% from approximately
RMB101.3 million in the previous financial year to approximately
RMB126.4 million in the year under review.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Interest in a joint venture increased from approximately RMB95.1
million (restated) as at 31 March 2012 to RMB174.1 million as
at 31 March 2013. The increase represented the advance to the
joint venture by the Group for Yichun Royal Lake City ( B &4
%) Phase 3.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s properties held under
development decreased to approximately RMB1,066.0 million
from approximately RMB1,078.3 million (restated) as at 31
March 2012. The decrease was because certain property units
which were previously under development had been completed
in the year under review.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties held for sale decreased from approximately RMB338.5
million as at 31 March 2012 to approximately RMB311.2 million
as at 31 March 2013. The decrease was mainly due to the
delivery of the completed residential property units of Yichun
Royal Lake City (B & #0144 ) Phase 1 to buyers in the year
under review.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group's prepayments and other
receivables amounted approximately RMB152.8 million,
compared to approximately RMB87.4 million (restated) as at 31
March 2012. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase
of prepayments to contractors for the construction of projects.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS, RECEIPTS IN
ADVANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accounts payable increased to approximately RMB29.3 million
as at 31 March 2013 from approximately RMB17.8 million
(restated) as at 31 March 2012 due to the increase in the number
of the Group’s property projects completed near 31 March
2013. Accounts payable mainly comprised amount payable to
suppliers for construction costs incurred in respect of the Group’s
properties under development.

Accruals, receipts in advance and other payables mainly comprise
of the advance receipts from customers in respect of deposit and
prepayments for the Group’s property pre-sales, and the accrued
construction costs and project-related expenses that are based
on the progress of project development but are not due for
payment.

BEEWED T

kY ES

RZE—=F=ZA=+—H FAEEREFRYE
MR- ZE——F=A=+—HHARK1,07838
B (&EY)) BRI ELHARKE,066.08 &L ° %
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEE R WE D

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS, RECEIPTS IN
ADVANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Accruals, receipts in advance and other payables decreased to
approximately RMB430.6 million as at 31 March 2013 from
approximately RMB478.8 million (restated) as at 31 March 2012.
The decrease mainly represented the advance receipts realised as
revenue in the year under review, which was partially offset by
the receipts from customers for the deposits and prepayments for
the Group’s property pre-sales in the same period.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

In the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group had recorded a net
cash inflow of approximately RMB54.2 million from operating
activities, mainly as a result of the profit before working capital
change and being partially offset by payment of Enterprise
Income Tax and LAT.

Net cash outflow from investing activities for the year under
review was approximately RMB316.5 million, which was mainly
due to the increase in pledged deposits of approximately
RMB237.3 million and the advance of approximately RMB79.0
million to the joint venture by the Group for Yichun Royal Lake
City (E &) Phase 3.

Net cash generated from financing activities for the year under
review was approximately RMB410.7 million mainly representing
the receipts from new bank and other loans.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB240.9 million (31 March 2012: approximately
RMB92.8 million (restated)).

The Group expects that income generated from business
operations and borrowings will continue to be major sources
of funding in the coming financial year. As a result, the Group
will continue to strengthen cash flow management, improve the
efficiency of capital returns of projects and strictly control the cost
and various expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BORROWINGS AND GEARING RATIO
Bank and other loans
As at 31 March 2013, the Group had bank and other loans

of approximately RMB533.5 million (2012: RMB80.0 million,
restated) as follows:

BEEWED T

BEREXHEEFLR
RITREMBER
RIBE-—=F=ZA=+—HB AEEZRTRE

EROARKSBSAET(ZT—F AR
#80.0B &L (FEH) )T :

2013 2012
—EB—-=F —E—_4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREBTTT
(Restated)
(re&E3)
Repayment period B

Within one year or on demand )5(\ FRIEIREN 99,000 -

More than one year, but not exceeding —FLAFETBBRRF
five years 434,500 80,000
533,500 80,000

The bank loans were denominated in RMB and amounted to
RMB145,000,000 as at 31 March 2013 and bore interest at
floating rates ranging from 6.15% to 7.995% per annum.
Other loans as at 31 March 2013 were denominated in RMB
and amounted RMB388,500,000, have a term of 3 years
commencing December 2012 and bore interest at fixed rates
ranging from 6.15% to 7.38% per annum.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had loan facilities of
approximately RMB633.5 million (2012: RMB80.0 million,
restated) for short-term and long-term loans, of which
approximately RMB533.5 million (2012: RMB80.0 million,
restated) were utilised.

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of bank
and other loans) less related deposit collateral over total equity.
As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s gearing ratio was 25.5%.
The Group has implemented certain loan management policies,
which include close monitoring of the gearing ratio and any
changes in interest rates.

R-ZE—=F=ZA=+—HB T EZTUARE
sHE N 2158 B AR 145,000,0007T  WIEN T &
F6.15%%F7.995% 2 FEFEF B - KT —=
FZAZ+—HAZHMABETUARBHEREE
A AR®388,500,000 BT ——FF+_Ai
BEZF  WIEN TEF6.15%27.38% 2 EEF

it o

R-_E—=ZF=ZA=+—H AEEBEEEZRR
BHOARBEBSABL(ZTE——F: AR
SO0EB T (KEY) ) UIEEAREHER &
FHARKSIZBSEETL(ZE—Z_F: ARK
80.0AE L (KEY) )BEEEA-

BEXHESERE

éMﬁiEﬁtﬂwﬁE(fE”‘&ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁW@%ﬁ)
BHBER TR AERRETE - RNZE—=
F=F=+—8" ANEIZéSAKEﬁiE%:tt%Z%
255% - AKBEEEITHE TEREEEER B4 8
EEREEREAMEGELRRAE ZEMEH-
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

BEENWED

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Group are set out in
note 31 of the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group are set out in
note 29 of the consolidated financial statements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in RMB which
is the functional currency of the Company and most of the
operating subsidiaries. Exposures to currency exchange rates
arise from certain of the Group’s cash and bank balances
which are denominated in HK dollars. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency
risk. The Group reviews its foreign currency exposures regularly
and believes that there is no significant exposure on its foreign
exchange risk.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2013, the Group pledged its investment
properties, properties under development and bank deposits
of approximately RMB672.8 million (2012: RMB88.7 million) to
various banks and financial institutions to secure loan facilities
granted to the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the end of reporting period are set out in
note 34 of the consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

In March 2013, the Group succeeded in the bid of a parcel of
land in Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC at a consideration
of approximately RMB506 million. A land grant contract for the
land parcel with a site area of approximately 20,482 sg. m. and
a planned construction area of approximately 81,982 sg.m. was
signed on 28 March 2013. As at the date of the Annual Report,
the Group has not yet obtained the land use rights certificate for
this parcel of land.

Save as disclosed in the Annual Report, the Group did not have
any material acquisition or disposal of assets, subsidiaries and
affiliated companies during the year ended 31 March 2013.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2013, there were 163 employees in the Group.
Staff remuneration package are determined in connection
with market conditions and the performance of the individuals
concerned, and are subject to review from time to time. The
Group also provides other benefits including medical insurance,
and grants discretionary incentive bonuses to eligible staff based
on their performance and contributions to the Group.

BEEWED T

EXBBEBREE

RZZE—=F=A FTEEXIWUREBHARE
S06E B LS —RAURFEINIEMMm 2z
W WER - E—=F=A -+ /\HEHHE
MEH /20,482 F 5 K AR B EEEE A /B81,982
FHRKZ I T EAR -RAAFHRA
NEBMARESZ iy tHFREREE-

BRAFRAMBEEIN BE_FT—=F=5
=T BLEFE AEEHELETERNEAKE
SHEEE WBARLBEB AT -

BETIRHMEE

RZZE-—=F=A=+—H XKEEAI3KE
T-BIHFMETBEEEMERARARBEBALLZ
REAMEE  WATRRN - AEBIEHEM
B (ERERRR)  URERERRBEUAE
ErERAEERE IR TRIEREIIEL -
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

BEENWED

COMPANY UPDATE

Property Pre-sales

The cumulative results for the pre-sale and delivery of properties
under each project up to 20 May 2013 are summarised as

DA BRFHHE

7]

HE—

RXHEE

KA 2 BEHERB AT -

T-=FRA-tH REBZVERE

follows:

Residential Units 1EEE W
Nanchang Fuzhou Fuzhou Yichun
Honggu Hua Cui Hua Cui Royal
Kaixuan Ting Yuan Ting Yuan Lake City
Phase 2 Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 1
R B A AElHE WNERER WMNEFER HEEHHHE
| — -8 —
Estimated total GFA released for sale (total units) 116,214 5g. m. 91,853 5g. m. 71,628 sq. m. 72,882 5q. m.
(1,007 units) (633 units) (525 units) (770 units)
L REE BRERE (BEVHE) 116,214 5K 91,853F ;K 71,628 5 K 72,882 1 K
(1,00718) (633fE) (52518) (77018)
Estimated total GFA pre-sold (total units) 113,954 5. m. 79,587 5q. m. 49,611 sq. m. 60,239 5g. m.
(999 units) (572 units) (428 units) (619 units)
RUCBRE BREERE (BBMHE) 113,954 F 75 % 79,587 1 K 49,611 7% 60,239 7 K
(99918) (57218) (4281H) (61918)
Percentage of pre-sale 98% 87% 69% 83%
BEMELE B7D298 B2 287 B 269 BN 283
Pre-sale GFA (units pre-sold) not handed to buyers 728 5q. m. 4,520 5. m. 49,611 sq. m. 17,564 sq. m.
as at 31 March 2013" (6 units) (23 units) (428 units) (187 units)
BEZZ—=-F=-A=T-BuRRFEFZ 728 7 K 4,50F 7 K 49,611 77 % 17,564 75 K
RERERB (EEEENHE)" (6f&) (231R) (4281H) (18718)
Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers RMB5.47 RMB26.80 RMB242.23 RMB76.39
as at 31 March 20137 million million million million
BE-_Z-=F-A=+-ANARNZEFZEESLE ARHES.47 AR#26.80 AR#242.23 AR%76.39
BET BET BET BETL
Average Selling Price (“ASP") per sq. m.* RMB7,514 RMB5,959 RMB4,883 RMB4,349
BEARFHER([THEE]) * ARET 5147 ARH59597T AR#4,883T AR#4,3497T

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited 275 f5 i 2 & & 5 R A A)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

COMPANY UPDATE (continued)
Property Pre-sales (continued)

Commercial Units

BEEWED T

REBRHHEE (&)
MI%TEE (&)
BFEW

Nanchang
Honggu Kaixuan
Phases 1 and 2
BB AL A H B
—_ :%

Estimated total GFA released for sale

EetER AT E 2 B EEEA

Estimated total GFA pre-sold
HEEREE CAREEE

Percentage of pre-sale

BEME L=

Pre-sale GFA not handed to buyers as at 31 March 2013"
HE _Z—=F=-A=+t—HrRARNEFZEERZELARE"

Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers as at 31 March 2013"

BHE T =—F=-A=t"BRARXNEPZEEELH"

ASP per sq. m.*

S K FYEE
*: ASP of the projects is computed as follows: Pre-sale value not

handed over to buyers divided by Pre-sale GFA not handed over
to buyers.

A Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers is computed as follows:
Pre-sales at the beginning of the year plus New pre-sales during
the year less those handed over to buyers during the year
(recognised as sales during the year).

16,215 sq. m.
16,215 17 3K

13,785 sq. m.
13,785F 77 3K

85%
B9 285

34 sg. m.
34°F 75 K

RMBO0.83 million
AR¥E0SIEETT

RMB24,412
ANR¥E24,4127T

* ZERBZVFHEBREDENOT WA
BEPZHEBERARNARNES 2RERE
EEe

A HAXNEPZAESRAETENT : F 4]
BESRNFAMERESERFACINE
FP(RERNERREE) M-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWED T

CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS AND DEVELOPING

PROJECTS

The Group will maintain our construction scale in order to offer
enough GFA available for sale and for delivery to support our

BEEERMABRER

AEESEFERERBREHEHRERERF
HERRZMN  UXFHERFIE R R AEEE

growth in future. Currently, the Group’s property project under EZ¥H¥EB M T :
construction are as follows:
Expected
Name of Project Province City Planned GFA Completion Date
HE £ - W REREEE BHRIAH
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan Phase 2 Jiangxi Nanchang Commercial: 31,852 Q2CY2013
- Sino Harbour Kaixuan Center
mEAAE_H-ERERL I Bl % 31,852 —T-=%
FEERT
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 2 Jiangxi Fuzhou Residential: 79,216 Q4CY2013
Commercial: 2,399
N EE 2R B2l — 5 I BN fF£:79,216 —T-=%
12,399 FNEERT
Nanchang Sino Harbour Island Villa Phase 1 Jiangxi Nanchang Residential: 137,668 Q1CY2014
Commercial: 6,464
mEEENE—H pi ME {£=:137,668 —T-mF
7% 16,464 F-EER
Yichun Royal Lake City Phase 2 Jiangxi Yichun Residential: 105,000 Q1CY2015
HEMHH 8 pi BE {£=€: 105,000 —ET-hE

In the year ending 31 March 2014, the Group intends to
commence construction on two new projects with Planned

E—FTERT

BE_T--MF=—A=1+—HLFE AEEH
MipnREmEHREE REEREEBENS

Saleable GFA of approximately 294,317 sg. m.: 294,317 5 Ko
Planned
Effective Group Saleable
Name of Project Interest City GFA
RETE
HE BB SELERES W EEEE
(sg.m.)
(FAK)
Nanchang Sino Harbour Island Villa Phase 2 55% Nanchang, Jiangxi Province 171,756
MEZAMSZH IFREmE
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 3 100% Fuzhou, Jiangxi Province 122,561
)N 2= %5 BB = AR LA E N
Total 294,317
w5t
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS AND DEVELOPING
PROJECTS (continued)

The Group will continue to release properties in Fuzhou Hua
Cui Ting Yuan Phase 2 and Yichun Royal Lake City Phase 1 for
pre-sales. Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 3, Nanchang Sino
Harbour Island Villa Phase 1 and Yichun Royal Lake City Phase 2
are also expected to be released for pre-sale in the year ending 31
March 2014. Furthermore, a 26-storey commercial tower, Sino
Harbour Kaixuan Center, will be available for lease in the year
ending 31 March 2014, the commercial building will provide the
Group with a new source of stable rental income.

LAND BANK

In March 2013, the Group acquired a parcel of land, which
is located in Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province. The planned
saleable GFA of this project was approximately 81,928 sg. m.
and would be developed into a commercial complex with office
premises and retail shops.

Details of the newly acquired land by the Group were as follows:

BEEWED T

BEEERMBIER (&)

AEE S EER DM ERERER — SR EEHW
WM—HI 2 MEIETRE - MMEXER =8 BEE%
BHE—HREFMHHR —MEBTEREE
T-NE=ZA=1+—"BILFEHEHAE I
—E26EEMEANE CRBIER L) BREE
E-ME=A=+—HIFEAHHE ZB*
REHBANEERHERBEOES WA ZHHRIR -

T

R-ZZF-=ZF=ZA AEEWELRAIITE M
Mzt -ZAB 2RE A ERERBOR
81,928F K MER AWM AZMERTEEH
ZIRABENE-

AREBEHKBEZ T HFHBWOT

Land Effective

Planned Cost per Group

Project Type City Saleable GFA sg. m. Interest

RETE BYHXK L]

EH 5 W BEOR T A HERER
(sq. m.) (RMB)
(F7%) (AEE)

Hangzhou Project Commercial Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province 81,928 6,176 100%

nMzRA BE AT &M

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had land bank with total
Planned Saleable GFA of approximately 2,954,422 sq. m. in 5
cities in the PRC.

RIE—=F=ZA=+—H AEERTHRAEE
WA LRSI ] EEREMIEL A2,954,422F 5
Kz b

Planned
Saleable GFA
RETE
EEEE
(sg. m.)
(F7AK)

Completed properties held for sales
Properties under development
Properties held for future development

FIELEZERIYE
R ES
FERKRE 2 ME

84,840
362,599
2,506,983

Total et

2,954,422
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEE R wWE D

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Having established its pioneering position in the Jiangxi Province
property market, the Group aims at accelerating its growth by
developing residential and commercial projects in the PRC that
generate high returns. Consistent with this aim, the Group will
replicate its successful investment model in property projects to
expand its presence elsewhere in the country. On the other hand,
the Group is actively expanding into emerging overseas markets
to benefit from an early-mover advantage. In particular, South
Africa will be closely examined, given the country’s reasonable
development costs and promising market growth. The Group will
also expedite efforts at identifying property projects with high
investment potential by leveraging its extensive network.

In March 2013, the Group succeeded in securing a parcel of
land in Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC. With a planned
construction floor area of approximately 81,928 sq. m., the
project is to be developed for commercial use. This initiative
demonstrated the Group's determination in diversifying its
property portfolio to capture the increasing demand for
commercial premises as well as retail outlets. By adding quality
investment projects to its existing property portfolio, the Group
aims to enhance the overall value of its assets and strengthen its
business and financial base, leading to long-term and satisfactory
returns for its Shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Looking to the PRC property market, tighter control on the
market has been applied repeatedly by the PRC government since
the end of 2012. In the State Council Executive Meeting dated 20
February 2013, the PRC government expressed its determination
to implement “The Five New Measures” to strengthen control
over the property market by repeatedly stating its desire to
eliminate house purchases for speculation and investment,
refining the home purchase quota policy and implementing
differential housing credit policies. At the same time, it is
expressly stated a general policy direction of non-relaxation of
property market restrictions.

Overall, the Group expects the PRC property market will remain
challenging in 2013. The Group is of the view that a series of
PRC government policy measures including “price restrictions”,
“purchase restrictions” and “credit limits” to curb the excessive
growth of housing prices will continue. Nonetheless, it is worthy
to emphasise that the PRC government aims at setting up an
effectively comprehensive regulatory regime to realise the long-
term healthy and stable development of the property market.
The government in this way aims to allow the growth of housing
demand for self-use, rather than speculative or investment
demand, to be satisfied. Furthermore, urbanisation in the PRC
will generate constant demand for housing, and sustainable
economic growth will stimulate demand for improved housing,
suggesting that the PRC's property market will undergo a long-
term growth cycle.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDENDS

After reviewing the annual results and performance together
with the Group’s working capital requirements, the Board has
proposed to pay a final dividend of HK4 cents per share for the
year ended 31 March 2013.

The proposed final dividends are subject to the approval by
Shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

BEEWED T

A BEEMEMSNE B -_F— —FFEMK
FR B IR AT Y T 45 A T PR AR B B0 R o I
E-=ZF_A-THZEBEEKEH L P
BT ERENR B AR - RAETOERIEHE K
REMRE NERBEEERRIERTRANE
SR AMRHEHEN IS 2 ZH 2R - F
B hERFACRESL TSR EEDS
PRIz BB R T 8t

EEMs ASEBATEFHEMSER _-F
—=ZFNER KRB - ARERS PEBT
EREDL - RIIBRER 2% (RE] - [RE)
RIRE|EBE Ut EEREER -BE W
- BEERANRTEBNEERY EEA RN
EEHE NEREHEMS cRMREEREE
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Directors’ Report
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The Board presents the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries
are set out in note 16 to the financial statements. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year ended 31 March 2013.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 52 of the annual report.

The Board has proposed to pay a final dividend of HK4 cents per
share to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 2 August 2013.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2013 is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 25 July
2013. A notice convening the Annual General Meeting has been
issued and disseminated to Shareholders on 25 June 2013.
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Directors’ Report

EEEWE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The share register of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
23 July 2013 to Thursday, 25 July 2013 (both days inclusive),
during which no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the Company, completed share transfer forms must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 22 July 2013.

The share register of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 31 July 2013 to Friday, 2 August 2013 (both days
inclusive), during which no transfer of shares will be effected. In
order to be qualified for the proposed final dividend, completed
share transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 30 July 2013.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 147 of
the annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that date
are set out on pages 50 to 146 of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profits attributable to Shareholders, before dividends, of
RMB126,444,000 (2012: RMB101,316,000) have been
transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 55 of
the annual report.

The Company's reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders as at 31 March 2013 were RMB39,209,000 (2012:
RMB29,998,000) before the distribution of proposed final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 of RMB38,741,000
(2012: RMB29,264,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemption of the Company's
listed securities by the Company and any of its subsidiaries during
the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
of the Company or the laws of Bermuda in relation to the issue
of new Shares.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for
its employees in Hong Kong and participates in a defined
contribution retirement scheme organized by the PRC municipal
government for its employees. Particulars of these retirement
schemes are set out in note 3.17 to the financial statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report
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BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Details of bank and other loans of the Group are set out in note
25 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2013, sales to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers amounted to approximately
7.7% and approximately 17.1% respectively of the Group’s
revenue in the year.

In the year ended 31 March 2013, payment attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers amounted
to approximately 12.3% and 40.7% of total payment under
construction contracts for the year respectively.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest
suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Shi Feng (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Lui

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Chan Heung Ling (Chairlady)
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Xie Gang
Mr. Lee Man To
Ms. Zhang Juan

In accordance with Bye-laws 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company, Mr.
Shi Feng and Mr. Lee Man To will retire from office as executive
Director and independent non-executive Director by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

RITRHEMER
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Xie Gang, Mr. Lee Man To and Ms. Zhang
Juan an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the date of this report,
the Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Ms. Chan Heung Ling, Mr. Shi Feng and Mr. Wong Lui has
a service contract with the Company for a term of three years and
each of these service contracts is subject to termination by either
party giving not less than six months’ written notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term
of one year and thereafter shall continue year to year subject
to termination by either party giving not less than one month’s
notice.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations
of the remuneration committee and the Board’s approval. The
emoluments are determined by the Board with reference to
directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results
of the Group.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 31 March 2013, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO") as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) were as follows:

(i) Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
in the Company

EEREETBRABZHES

R-ZBE-ZF=ZA=+—H EFRIBTEA
BERARAREEMMABER (EER (BEHF Kk
HEERD ([ (BERBEHKE) |)FEXVEL) 2
Pty s ARRARL D P HE B R AR R RIRE (B
KEIE GG $£352RFE 2B LM 2 B goR
BOREARBLETETAEZTETERRHZE
A ([BRESFR) STAEARA R
ZHERIORBWT

() RERXTIEREENEBTZEBER I
B

Percentage of

Number of issued share capital
Name of Director Shares held Nature of Interest HERITRA
EENR FrEFERGEE EEME ZEDL
Ms. Chan Heung Ling 900,000,000 Interest of controlled 75%
("Ms. Chan") (Note) corporation
PRImI 224 ([BRZ L)) (P&E) ZEHEEE R
Note: These shares are held by Pan Hong Property as beneficial Mizt: ZERODBNABHEERERRE AR

owner. Pan Hong Property is owned as to 55.88% by
Extra Good Enterprises Ltd. (“Extra Good"), which is
in turn owned as to 52% by Mr. Wong Lam Ping (“Mr.
Wong"), the spouse of Ms. Chan, and 48% by Ms.
Chan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the
Directors or chief executives had any interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

7 ° Extra Good Enterprises Ltd. ([Extra
Good | ) FF B N B 11 EES5.88 % i 4 - i
BRZ+ 2 BLB Mk (DELE])
KPR 2z -9 Bl # B Extra Good 2 52% &
48% R ©

BREXFIEBEEN RZE—=F=A=+—8"
MEEEH T BITHABRANR A SE AR5
B (EER CEFMYEERD) FEXVER) 2 kim
AR PHEE 2 EAERIORRMBLAR
B GEFRBERE) £3521&FE 2 ERMA -
HARTTAERNR A REEFe

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited /&% EHhE £ EHR A A
Annual Report 2012/20134F #i

27



Directors’ Report

EEEHE

28

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
(continued)

(i)  Long positions in the shares of associated
corporations

EERIBETHRABZES (&

(i) REBZERGZHR

Number, class and
percentage of

Name of shares in associated
associated Capacity/ corporation
Name of Director corporation nature of interest EEBEEENROEE -
EEpR HEEE B R B REatE HrkBEDL
Mr. Shi Feng Pan Hong Property Beneficial owner 473,900 ordinary shares (0.09%) of
Pan Hong Property
A&EE I EE BEREAA 473,900 L% 1 2 % 1A% (0.09%)
Ms. Chan Pan Hong Property Beneficial owner 323,395,494 ordinary shares
(62.75%) of Pan Hong Property
(Note)
Rzt SR B BEEBEAA 323,395,494 00 8 Hh 2 & B AR
(62.75%) (FH3E)
Note: BT -

Ms. Chan is interested in 323,395,494 ordinary shares
(approximately 62.75% of the entire issued share capital) of Pan
Hong Property, which comprises: (1) 14,443,300 ordinary shares
of Pan Hong Property held by her; (2) 20,952,194 ordinary shares
of Pan Hong Property, held by her spouse, Mr. Wong, which she
is deemed to be interested; and (3) 288,000,000 ordinary shares
of Pan Hong Property held by Extra Good, which she is deemed
to be interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2013, insofar as is known to the Directors or chief
executive of our Company, the following persons (not being a
Director or chief executive of our Company), had an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company

FERRZER

R-ZB-—Z=ZF=ZA=+—H BEFHAQFE
ZUTBABMA THAL(LIFEEHARA
TETBAS) RO KARBB D T A ARE
(BHREERG) EXVEBE2 X35 E2 &R
ARABBEEZERIORBIT -

RAQABEREEIIETZEBRZHR

Percentage of

Number of issued share capital
Name of Shareholder Shares held Nature of Interest HERITRA
BREREE FrERMEE EEME 2Bt
Pan Hong Property 900,000,000 Beneficial owner 75%
B M E EmEA A
Extra Good 900,000,000 Interest of controlled 75%
(Note) corporation
(M) ZEHEEER
Mr. Wong 900,000,000 Interest of controlled 75%
(Note) corporation
EEE (BfF3E) A E
Note: Pan Hong Property is owned as to 55.88% by Extra Good, which  Fff#¥: Extra Good+s A )7 th ZE55.88 %4 2= + M PR &

is in turn owned as to 52% by Mr. Wong, the spouse of Ms.
Chan, and 48% by Ms. Chan.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
person who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares as at 31 March 2013, which would fall to be
disclosed under Division 2 and 3 of part XV of the SFO, were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

+ 2 BB T S £ R BR 2 £ 5 B B Extra Good
52% N A48% 1S

BEXABEEEN EFXTAE R_F—=
FZA=1+—R BEAEMALTRKRDXKIERH
B EA IR MBRE (ESEHE
B> FEXVEBE2R3D BELEE MZFEAL
BRAARRERE (EmrRBEED) %E336{FF
B2 B
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 32(a) to the
financial statements also fell under the definition of “continuing
connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
As the annual amount involved in this continuing connected
transaction is less than HK$1,000,000, such continuing
connected transaction will qualify as de minimis transaction
under Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules, that is exempt from
the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
Shareholders" approval requirements.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company, or its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director has a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contacts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group, as defined by the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

On 30 June 2011, the Company and Pan Hong Property
entered into a non-compete undertaking (the “Non-compete
Undertaking”) to avoid any potential competitions between the
business of the Company and Pan Hong Property after the spin-
off and separate listing of the Company. Relevant undertakings
between the Company and Pan Hong Property was disclosed in
the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”
of the Prospectus.
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NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING (continued)

The Company has received a confirmation from Pan Hong
Property that it has complied with the terms of the Non-
compete Undertaking for the year ended 31 March 2013. The
independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the said
confirmation and are of the view that Pan Hong Property has
complied with the terms of the Non-compete Undertaking.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company’s business to which the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Board confirms
that the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as
required by the Listing Rules as at the latest practicable date prior
to the issue of this annual report.

DONATION

The Group did not make any charitable donations during the year
(2012: HK$1,000,000).

AUDITOR

BDO Limited retire and a resolution for the re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. There has been no change in the
auditors of the Company since the listing of the shares of the
Company on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

By order of the Board

Shi Feng
Deputy Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group recognises that good corporate governance
establishes and maintains a legal and ethical environment,
which is essential for preserving and enhancing the interests of
all stakeholders. The Company has complied with most of the
code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code
Provision”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 March 2013,
except as noted hereunder.

Due to personal commitments, Ms. Chan Heung Ling, the
chairlady of the Board, did not attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 25 July 2012 (“2012 AGM"). This
constitutes a deviation to of the code provision E.1.2 of the CG
Code.

Ms. Zhang Juan, the independent non-executive Director of the
Company, was unable to attend the 2012 AGM due to personal
commitments. This constitutes a deviation to of the code
provision A.6.7 of the CG Code.

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and
supervising the management of the business affairs and
the overall performance of the Group. The Board sets
the Group's values and standards and ensure that the
requisite financial and human resources support are in
place for the Group to achieve its objectives. Currently,
the Board comprises six Directors, including two executive
Directors, Mr. Shi Feng and Mr. Wong Lui, a non-executive
Director Ms. Chan Heung Ling and three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Xie Gang, Mr. Lee Man To
and Ms. Zhang Juan. Mr. Wong Lui is the son of Ms. Chan
Heung Ling. Save as disclosed above, there is no family or
other material relationship among members of the Board.
Biographical details of the Directors are out on pages 44
to 46 of the annual report.
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(A)

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

All executive Directors and non-executive Director entered
into service contracts with the Company for a specific
term of three years. Under the Bye-Laws of the Company,
the Board is empowered to appoint any person as a
Director to fill a causal vacancy on or as an additional
Director. Where vacancies exist, the Board shall carry
out selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, qualification, integrity and time commitments
of the proposed candidates.

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, one of whom has appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting and financial management.
All independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
their independence of the Company and the Company
considers them to be independent in accordance with
the guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. All independent non-executive
Directors have entered into letters of appointment with
the Company for a specific term of one year. One third
of the Directors are subject to retirement from office by
rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting
provided that every Director shall be subject to rotation at
least once every three years in accordance with the Bye-
Laws of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have given sufficient time and effort to
the affairs of the Group. Independent non-executive
Directors have provided the Board with their diversified
expertise, experience and professional advice. The Board
believes that the ratio between executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors is reasonable and
adequate to provide sufficient checks and balances that
safeguard the interests of Shareholders and the Group.
The Board also believes that the views and participation
of the independent non-executive Directors in the
Board and committee meetings provides independent
judgment on the issues relating to strategy, performance,
conflict of interest and management process to ensure
that the interests of all Shareholders are considered and
safeguarded.
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(A)

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) (A) EEe(#)
All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant AEWEBAENESEREFeEXHRE
information in relation to the Group’s businesses and AMA FEESA2EARERERE
affairs as well as unrestricted access to the advice and EEBREBE@ENRBMREBER W
services of the company secretary, who is responsible ERHNELTFINAAMENER KR
for providing Directors with Board papers, and related B RRRAIEAEEENEITHG RS R
materials. The Directors may seek independent SEHRBYEEERNBHEER
professional advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying
out their duties and responsibilities.
The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient AARIEREREBITAREBEEEM
insurance coverage on Directors’ liabilities in respect B AEFDECHFNETBESCERTRE
of legal actions taken against Directors arising out of R B
corporate activities.
The Directors are committed to complying with the code B AGE E ST T AR 2 EA.6.5055F Al K
provision A.6.5 of the Code Provisions. All Directors have XN -REBE_ZE-—=F=A=1T—HI%F
participated in continuous professional development and B 2RBEEHFREFEHERRE I
provided a record of training they received for the year MARAREEES 2B -
ended 31 March 2013 to the Company.
The individual training record of each Director received for REBEE_ZE—=F=A=+—HILEE"
the year ended 31 March 2013 is set out below: BESEXEIZBEARSZHINNT
Briefings and
updates on the business,
operations and corporate
governance matters
BHX EERLEER
Name of Director BEEpgA EHZERRER
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Shi Feng (Deputy Chairman and AERE (FIFEF
Chief Executive Officer) BEHITE) v
Mr. Wong Lui TEAEE v
Non-executive Director HHITEE
Ms. Chan Heung Ling (Chairlady) BRUIZ 2+ (£/E) 4
Independent Non-executive Directors HIHNTESE
Mr. Xie Gang 7% A 52 A v/
Mr. Lee Man To THUEKEE 4
Ms. Zhang Juan RIBZ L v/
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(A)

(B)

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Board held
seven meetings. At these board meetings, Directors
discussed and exchanged their views on significant issues
and general operations of the Group, reviewed the
financial performance and reviewed and approved the
quarterly, interim and final results.

At least 14 days notice prior to the date of meeting
is given to all Directors and an agenda together with
board papers are sent to all Directors no less than three
days before the date of meeting. All Directors are given
opportunity to include in the agenda any other matter
that they would like to discuss in the meeting. Regarding
the board committee meeting, reasonable prior notice is
given to all committee members.

The company secretary assists the Chairman of the Board
in preparation of the agenda for the board meeting and
board committee meeting. He also prepares and keeps
detailed minutes of each board meeting and board
committee meeting. Within a reasonable time after each
meeting, the draft minutes are circulated to all Directors
or committee members for comment and the final and
approved version of minutes is sent to all Directors and
committee members for their record. The company
secretary has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CHAIRLADY AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Ms. Chan Heung Ling is the Chairlady of the Board
and Mr. Shi Feng is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairlady and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly
divided to ensure a balance of power and authority.

Ms. Chan Heung Ling, being the Chairlady, is responsible
for formulating the Company’s overall strategies and
policies, providing leadership to the Board and ensuring
the Board functions effectively. She would ensure
complete, reliable and timely information being provided
to the Directors and encourage Directors to actively
participate in the Board to act in the best interest of the
Company.

(A)

(B)

BExg(#)

BE_ZT-=—F=-A=t—HILHEE &
FERTLREZ NRFEFEER L
EEAKENERZER —REEET
Ak RBEBR R BRIR - A RER
RHtEZTE P HRRIERE -

SEENEFTTEZHHIRL T UAE
BeZ@x TrRezB s =A%
RBBEREET NG -SEZAHIN
HIRPMARESRN S LT mAE R EAi
EE-ERLEEKENEELTES S 4
EAEMIBLBM-

NEAWERDEETSTIFREEZTSNE
EREQeRERE RN EFTENES
ZEeERIFM RFEFMRLE G&C
BNERBNEREHERKNE LR
NBGEEEFAZBENEER  UfHt
ESAREERBREHER MEFHLK
REEHENRABREGHBESTREE
EXBIECE - RAWECZRET LD

MAIFE3. 291G 2 R E R IBIIE K -

0

+

IRREFEYUTE

RMR AL REETEIRE ABEERAK
RAEFATE EREEFATEAR
BBRE D UHERENRER ZHE -

BH/BES

TERMP LT ARFEARRMNERR
BLEER FEEZGREREESAN
BIF - WIERESERHETE AIFERE
MER TEBEEEEG2EERE |t
MLEFEUAR BN RENZE QKR

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited /&% EHhE £ E AR A A

Annual Report 2012/20134F #i

35



Corporate Governance Report

36

AN s sk

TERERHE

(B) CHAIRLADY AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (B) FERERHTE (&)
(continued)
Mr. Shi Feng, being the Chief Executive Officer, is HREATEARCEBERARNATE
responsible for the daily operations of the Company, B ZERESSHTE RRMNEBECE -
execution of business policies, strategies, objectives K BRERFTEINRBERAGEEA
and plans as formulated and adopted by the Board and 8o
leading the management of the Company.

(C) COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE (0 BIFEESA
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities RABIEHM ETMRAMEE s 2 £
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the BITAERETIE SR HNERESTR (8
“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Z<FR) ERESETESFRIHIZIR
Rules as its code of conduct for securities transactions by TR -KRE2EESFLARENRE 2
the Directors. After having made specific enquiries with all BEFER BEREE-E—=F=A
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied =+ —HUIEFERN—HETEETRIME
with the required standards set out in the Model Code ZFRIELER] -
throughout the year ended 31 March 2013.

(D) DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE (D) ESUUBHRRNEME
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for EFHNERERUBE_ZT—=5=H
preparation of the consolidated financial statements for =St RUEMEFNGEEMBHRRNEE
the financial year ended 31 March 2013, which give a true WBWMERNEAFTRMAAFRAEER
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and —E-=HF=ZA=+t—ANEBRARER
the Group at 31 March 2013 and of the Group’s results SEEEZZABIEFENEERREM
and cash flows for the year then ended and are properly WREEARE TR T RS ERILRHE
prepared on going concern basis in accordance with BEEEZ QRS -
the applicable statutory requirements and accounting
standards.
The external auditor of the Group have also stated their REB 2 HIMNEZ BB INE R 4R & Bk &
reporting responsibility in the auditor’s report of the ZIEEMBENEHBEECRABRETE
consolidated financial statements. B -

(E) BOARD COMMITTEES () EEZE®

The Board has established three board committees,
namely audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee, to oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. The Board committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties.
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(E)

(F)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

The written terms of reference for each committee were
adopted by the Board. The terms of reference are in line
with the Listing Rules and they are posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, an
audit committee was established on 4 July 2011 with
written terms of reference in accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The audit committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Lee Man To (the chairman), Mr. Xie Gang and Ms. Zhang
Juan. The audit committee reports to the Board and is
delegated by the Board to assess matters related to the
financial statements. Under its terms of reference, the
audit committee is required to perform, amongst others,
the following duties:

o monitoring whether the Group’s management
has, in the performance of its duties, infringed any
policies set by the Board or any applicable laws,
regulation and code and report to the Board;

o reviewing the Group's internal control procedures
and system;
J making recommendations to the Board for the

improvement of the Group’s internal control
procedures and system;

o making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of
the external auditor, and to approve and review
the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal; and

o monitoring the integrity of accounts, financial
statements, interim reports and annual reports.

() EEZEEE (&)

EXgCEMEREe EERERE-
ZEREHRETS EMARR W B
B P R AN B M o

() HBRZEERHEM
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(F)

(G)

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
(continued)

The audit committee held four meetings during the year
and all minutes were kept by the company secretary.
The committee has reviewed the accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Group and the quarterly and
interim results of the Group. The committee reported that
there was no material uncertainty that cast doubt on the
Company’s going concern ability.

Auditors’ remuneration

The total fees paid/payable in relation to the audit service
provided by BDO Limited, Certified Public Accountants,
Hong Kong, the external auditors of the Company, for the
year ended 31 March 2013 amounted to HK$830,000. No
non-audit service was provided by the external auditors
for the year ended 31 March 2013.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established with written
terms of reference in accordance with the Code Provision
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The main
responsibilities of the remuneration committee include
but not limited to formulate remuneration policy for
the approval of the Board, and make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management. The remuneration committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Xie Gang (the chairman), Mr. Lee Man To and Ms. Zhang
Juan, non-executive Director Ms. Chan Heung Ling and
one executive Director Mr. Shi Feng.

Two remuneration committee meetings were held
during the year to review the remuneration policies and
determine the annual bonus of the Directors and senior
executives.
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(H)

U

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The major duties of the nomination committee are to give
advice to the Board on the appointment/re-appointment
of Directors, to review the structure, number of members
and composition of the Board, and to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The nomination committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Xie Gang (the
chairman), Mr. Lee Man To and Ms. Zhang Juan, and one
executive Director Mr. Wong Lui.

One meeting was held during the year, all committee
members had attended the meeting.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board
meetings, board committee meetings and the general
meeting of the Company held during the year ended 31
March 2013 is set out in the table below:

(H)

U

REZES

REZEENIZBERMREET EHZE
TEFE BRIKERELRBEUNLESE
MEKMESSRUER I GBI
WITES 2B

RAZEENEH=-RBIUIFNTESHE
Mised (£F)  FEBELRERKRBREIA
R—RITERTRELEEK-

REBHBIT-REEZ MBEZEEKE
BHERADZE-

EERZEERENERLEFERLE

TREBINEEEHFBRE_T—=F=A
ST BLEFERTZEZSSH EF
ZEERHANARABRRASMNRCHE:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEEEAR ERETAY

Annual

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEps EEE ENRZEEE® FMZERE RAZEE RREFAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Shi Feng RELE 717 212 0N
Mr. Wong Lui ARELE 717 11 1/1
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Chan Heung Ling BRmk L 717 212 0N
Independent BUFHTES

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xie Gang RIS A 717 44 22 1/1 1
Mr. Lee Man To FEUESLAE 17 4/4 212 11 17
Ms. Zhang Juan RIEZTL 717 4/4 22 17 01
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(K)

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
a sound system of internal control framework. The
controls are to provide reasonable assurance to safeguard
Shareholders investments and the Group's assets. The
system of internal controls is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives. It can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss and the
review of the Group's internal control systems should be
a concerted and continuing process.

The Group's control environment provides the foundation
upon which all other components of internal controls are
built upon. It provides discipline and structure, setting
the tone of the organisation and influencing the control
consciousness of its staff. A weak control environment
foundation hampers the effectiveness of even the best
designed internal control procedure.

The external auditor have, during the course of audit,
considered the internal control relevant to the Group’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
within the scope of their audit. The Board, through the
audit committee, had reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group, and also reviewed
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget. The
Board believes that the existing internal control system is
adequate and effective.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group is committed to regular and proactive
communication with its Shareholders. The Company has
adopted a policy of disclosing clear, adequate and relevant
information to Shareholders in a timely manner through
various channels. Annual and interim reports are printed
and sent to all Shareholders by post as requested. The
Company has complied with provisions of the Listing Rules
by posting announcements, notices, quarterly reports,
interim reports, annual reports and Shareholders’ circulars
on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company
(http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk).
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(K)

(L)

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS (continued)

Shareholders are encouraged to attend Annual
General Meetings and Special General Meetings. In the
general meeting, there is a briefing on the business
of the Company by the Chairman of the Board and a
question and answer session as well as a discussion with
Shareholders on the long-term development strategy of
the Company.

Notice of annual general meeting is delivered to all
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to the
date of the meeting, setting out details of each proposed
resolution, voting procedures (including procedures for
demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. As at the beginning of the meeting, the
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll will be
explained by the Chairman of the Board. Vote results are
released by way of publication of an announcement.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

How Shareholders can convene a Special General
Meeting

According to Bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The requisition shall be in writing addressed to the Board
or the company secretary and deposited at the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 1215,
Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37 — 39 Ma Tau
Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with
section 74(3) of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

(K)

(L)
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong, the contact details of which are set out as follows:

Tricor Investor Services Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone : 2980 1333
Facsimile : 2810 8185
Shareholders, potential investors and the media may at
any time make a request for the Company's information
to the extent such information is publicly available and
make enquiries to the Company through the following
means:
Strategic Financial Relations Limited
By telephone : 2111 8468
By post : Unit A, 29th Floor, Tower 1,
Admiralty Centre,
18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty

Hong Kong

By email : ir@sinoharbour.com.hk
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(L) SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued) (L) BRRER(E)
The procedures for making proposals at general RERASLREBRZER
meetings
To put forward proposals at a general meeting, MR EREARE FIREFRE REERADA
Shareholders should submit a written notice of those MEZSRXZEDR 2 EH B HER A5
proposals with detailed contact information to the RER MUt REARBNEBZ TEE?
company secretary at the Company's principal place of HEE (MU BB B N AEALH SEEEE37-39
business in Hong Kong at Room 1215, Tower B, Hunghom SRATR P E R OBEE1215% )  BRIERG
Commercial Centre, 37 — 39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, ARG ZBEEBROBPELREZE I
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The request will be verified within FRERRZERRRER RARANEE
the company’s share registrar in Hong Kong and upon MEFSROBEBEAAZEMARTERE
their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, EEA
the company secretary will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
(M) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS (M) ABEERH

There were no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31
March 2013.

AARBE-—E-—=F=A=+—BIE
ErABERI AL EEAES-
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CHAIRLADY AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chan Heung Ling (BRI ) , aged 54, is one of the founders of
the Group and became the Chairlady of the Company and non-
executive Director on 4 July 2011. Ms. Chan is mainly responsible
for the formulation of the overall strategy of the Group. Ms.
Chan has engaged in property development since 1990s and has
experience in this area for over 17 years. She participated in the
property business of Pan Hong Property and has been the deputy
chairlady and an executive director of Pan Hong Property from
January 2006 to June 2011. Ms. Chan is the spouse of Mr. Wong
Lam Ping (“Mr. Wong"”), the controlling shareholder (as defined
in the Listing Rules), and is the mother of Mr. Wong Lui, one of
the executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Shi Feng (AI#) , aged 55, became the deputy chairman, the
chief executive officer of the Company and an executive Director
on 4 July 2011. Mr. Shi is responsible for the management of
project plans, quality control, contractors, and the management
of the Group's subsidiaries. He joined Pan Hong Property in
September 2002 and was an executive director of Pan Hong
Property from January 2006 to June 2011.

He was certified as an engineer by the Ministry of Light Industry
of the PRC (FREE AR HFEEE T X EF) in 1987.

Mr. Shi graduated with a bachelor’s degree in civil and industrial
construction from Hunan University in December 1981.

Prior to joining Pan Hong Property, Mr. Shi was an assistant civil
engineer at the construction technology department of Twenty
Third Metallurgy Construction Company under the Ministry
of Metallurgy VB € TE MR _+ =@ 8X AR (IR
fiTBE ) ) from 1982 to 1983. He served as an engineer at the
Changsha Design Institute of the Ministry of Light Industry ( #%
T ¥ RDFREBT) from 1983 to 1992, where he specialised
in the structural design of buildings. Mr. Shi subsequently joined
Huilong (Group) Ltd. of Huizhou City, Guangdong Province ( &
REBMMEEEBEERDQAF) from 1992 to 1999 as the
deputy general manager, responsible for real estate development
and technical construction management. Between 1999 and
2002, he was the general manager of 3A Electronics Co., Ltd. in
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province (BT EBM=BEFAR R A)
the PRC.

Mr. Shi is now a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Donghu District of Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC. He is also the standing director of the
Second Nanchang Overseas Chinese Entrepreneurs Association.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Wong Lui (7% ) , aged 30, became an executive Director of the
Company on 4 July 2011. Mr. Wong Lui is mainly responsible for
the operational management and development of the projects
of Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan (# & 4L & 8l}JE ) and Fuzhou Hua
Cui Ting Yuan (¥EMNZEZEEFT ) . He joined Pan Hong Property
in October 2007 as the assistant to the chairman of Pan Hong
Property in the formulation of business strategy and management
of Pan Hong Property. He was appointed as the deputy project
manager and the deputy general manager of Jiangxi Asia City
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Jiangxi Asia City”, JT 7§
M E M ER AR AR, one of the Group's subsidiaries,
in 2008 and was mainly responsible for management of
construction works. He was also appointed as the general
manager of Fuzhou Pan Hong Kai Xuan Property Development
Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou Pan Hong", #E/NNE B ERZE AR A
7)), another subsidiary of the Group, in 2009 and was mainly
responsible for the formulation of business strategy and the daily
management of Fuzhou Pan Hong.

Mr. Wong Lui is now a standing committee member of Jiangxi
Federation of Industry and Commerce.

Mr. Wong Lui is the son of Ms. Chan, the Chairlady, and Mr.
Wong, the controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Xie Gang (f#fl) , aged 48, became an independent
non-executive Director on 4 July 2011. Mr. Xie was the head
representative of AXA Guangzhou representative office from
1995 to 2002, during which he was responsible for the
operation of the representative office and matters relating to
establishing branch companies for AXA group. From 2003 to
2008, he was the manager of AXA-Minmetals Assurance Co.,
Ltd., Guangdong Branch and was responsible for government
relations, establishing new companies, recruitment, franchise
development, risk management, marketing and sales etc. Mr. Xie
graduated from Xiamen University with a bachelor’s degree in
computer science in July 1988.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Lee Man To (Z#UH) , aged 40, became an independent non-
executive Director on 4 July 2011. Mr. Lee is an executive director,
the financial controller, qualified accountant and company
secretary of Combest Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Goldmond Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8190).
Mr. Lee has over 15 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and finance including acting as accountant, compliance officer
and financial manager for various private companies. He served
in the group finance department of Rosedale Hotel Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited),
a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 1189), from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Lee graduated in
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s degree
in accountancy in 1995. Mr. Lee is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Zhang Juan (R #8) , aged 29, became an independent non-
executive Director on 4 July 2011. She has been the legal
representative of Shanghai Jinfu Trading Company Limited
(L5 EEmE AR AR since 2009, which is principally
engaged in the business of retail of jewellery and artworks and
accessories trading. Ms. Zhang is responsible for product design
and product manufacturing and sales process. She has also been
the legal representative and a director of Shanghai Yunteng
Investment Management Limited ( E/BZEREEEE AR A
A)) since 2010, which is principally engaged in the business
of financial investment management and consultation. In her
position as legal representative, Ms. Zhang is in charge of the said
company'’s financial regulatory matters, budget analysis, as well
as overseeing the said company’s internal controls. Ms. Zhang
graduated from Shanghai Ocean University ( /& /&F K2) ,
formerly known as Shanghai Fisheries University ( £ /& 7K & A
E2) , with a bachelor’s degree in finance in 2005.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Li Ming Yuan (Z 8 Jt), aged 50, is the Group's director of
property management. He joined Pan Hong Property in 2004 as
deputy general manager of Jiangxi Asia City. He remained in this
position until 2007 and was afterwards appointed as the deputy
general manager of Jiangxi Ganghong Investment Co. Ltd. (;T78
BAEZEBRAQA) in the same year.

Mr. Li was educated at Jiangxi Broadcasting and Television
University TP EEE R KE) , where he graduated in 1989
majoring in Industrial and Civil Construction. From 1989 to
1996, he served as a construction worker, deputy head of
the production department and the director of production
technology department at Nanchang City Municipal Engineering
Development Co., Ltd. (FEETM MK TEMRABEARAF]) . Mr. Li
was certified as an engineer in 1997.

Gao Lan (/&) , aged 47, is the Group's director of marketing
and administration. Ms. Gao joined the Group in June 2010 as
the director of marketing and administration (Southern Region)
of Pan Hong Property.

Ms. Gao graduated from Jiangxi Industrial University (;T 78 T %
KE) , the predecessor of Nanchang University (F9 & K2 ),
in 1987, with a bachelor’s degree majoring in industrial and
civil construction. She was certified as an engineer in 1994 and
qualified as class 2 constructor in 2003.

Ms. Gao has extensive experience in the construction and real
estate development industry. She worked at the technology
division of the real estate development department of Nanchang
City Municipal Engineering Development Co., Ltd. (B & ™ ™
R TR AR A F]) from 1987 to 1993. She joined Hainan
Huan Li (Real Estate) Group (/BRI 3R Sz (M E ) &£ E) in 1993,
acting as the director of the chief executive officer’s office, and
as the deputy general manager of Hainan Huan Li Real Estate
Development Co. Ltd. BB RZLEHWERZEBR A A) .
Ms. Gao was the deputy general manager of Shanghai Jing Ja
Immovable Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. ( /B ETEER
B ABMR AT from 2001 to 2006. From 2006 to 2009, she
was the deputy general manager of Nanchang Lan Di Consultant
Co., Ltd. (FIEEMEER AR AR]) . After that, she joined Jiangxi
Jinhai Property Co., Ltd. IR BEHEBRET QA as the
general manager from 2009 to 2010 before joining Pan Hong
Property.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Qiu Si Yuan (BB JR) , aged 53, is the Group's director of
planning and design. Mr. Qiu joined Pan Hong Property as the
director of planning and design in 2008.

Mr. Qiu has worked in construction industry for over 25 years,
including China CEC Engineering Corporation ( F & T # K%
TiRBRAA), formerly known as Changsha Design Institute
of the Ministry of Light Industry (¥ T 2 3Z8& 7 & &t6t) , from
1982 to 1995. In 1995, Mr. Qiu was assigned to work in Hunan
Dacheng Design Co., Ltd. (#IF RRK R ET B R AF) as the
deputy head of the institute and chief architect until 2008. He
joined Pan Hong Property thereafter. Mr. Qiu was registered as a
certified class 2 architect in 1997.

Zhang Zun De (3R ) , aged 51, is the Group's director of
construction work. He joined Pan Hong Property in May 2007 as
the director of construction work (Southern Region) of Pan Hong
Property. He presently serves as the chief engineer of Jiangxi Asia
City.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Hunan University with a bachelor’s
degree in highway engineering in 1982. Mr. Zhang was certified
as a senior engineer in road and bridge engineering in 2001.
Mr. Zhang worked in Hunan Communications Research Institute
CHEA BRI HZER ) from 1982 to 1989, during which he
was assigned to China Highway and Bridge Corporation ( #
NEEERE QA from 1985 to 1987, Haikou City Municipal
Government Construction Corporation (/& [ 77 /1 E 2 3% T 2
‘A |]) from 1989 to 2000 and Hunan Construction Engineering
Group Corporation (JHFEE ZE TREEREAZ A R]) from 2000 to
2007.

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited 275 f5 i 2 & & 5 R A A)
Annual Report 2012/2013 4 i

BREEE (&)

ERRRIR - 535% - MAKEMRBIRTEE - BBEAR
“EENEMANBHE  EEREI R EE-

BEAERFEZETEBE_+LF B8ER
— AN ZEFE-AANRAFERPBEEIXREYD
ITRERAR (AMETEIHRDRAR) -1
—NMNAFE-FTTN\FHHE BEEEZIRKD
MEARAKBERTARAREERIGERERE
R WBERMMACAABE -BBEER—NNE
FRERTI R — AR M 5EAD -

RER S5 RASEIRAE -FR_TTL
FRAMAREE  BEUEE (FEE)
REREE - RALBAMRIATRMNEERITE
i o

REER—NAN_FEXERHBEARE MEA
BIBBTEU - REER_FTT—FEAA
REBIRESRIBM-REENR-NAN_F
E-NNNFERABERBNMEBMER &
—NN\EFE-ANLFHEEZREPE QI
BRERR E-—N/\NEFE2_STTFHHE
ZREBOTHTHRERIREAR kBE-_TEZE
FE_TTLHFHNFABZRENHEEETREE
EIRGENCID



Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEEBZERFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liu Lin Yu (2IBf %) , aged 61, is the Group's director of project
expenditure. He joined Pan Hong Property in 2000, and had
been responsible for costs management at Pan Hong Property’s
development projects. Since joining Pan Hong Property, he has
served as the deputy general manager of Jieyang Hong Jun Real
Estate Co. Ltd. (#BF5 =& F#E 2 ) and on-site engineer of
Huzhou Liyang Housing and Landing Development Co., Ltd. (J#
MNEEGEEMZEABR A R]) . He had also served as the budget
forecast manager and the deputy general manager of Jiangxi Asia
City.

Mr. Liu was certified as an assistant engineer by Chaozhou City
Science and Technology Committee (B M RIBRITEE S
in 1989. He graduated from an intermediate level professional
civil engineering correspondence learning course (7 & + K &
SETIRHEZE KIZIE) from Sichuan International Technical and
Economic Management Training Centre (9 JI| B BR 3% 17 £ 4%
FEERAREZFNF L) in 1990. In 1991, he was qualified as a
budget forecaster and worked for Chaozhou City Qiao Dong
Construction Company CE /M ME R ZZ R A]) . The said
qualification was granted by Guangdong Province Construction
Standard Authority ([ ER & B IZEERE4A) .

Siu Ho Fai (& RE) , aged 32, is the financial controller of
the Group. He is also the company secretary and one of the
authorised representatives of the Company. Mr. Siu has over ten
years of experience in finance, auditing and accounting. Mr. Siu
joined the Group in March 2011. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked for international certified public accountants firms for
over seven years. Mr. Siu obtained bachelor’s degree of business
administration in accountancy and law from City University of
Hong Kong in 2002. He is also a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
s +852 2218 8288 &8
{HE : +852 2815 2239 FHEER1115E

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SINO HARBOUR PROPERTY GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sino
Harbour Property Group Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 52 to 146,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2013 and of the Group's profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Joanne Y.M. Hung

Practising Certificate Number P05419

Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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2013 2012
—E—-=f —EF—_F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
M aE AR¥T R AR®EF T
(Restated)
(gE7))
Revenue WA 6 559,918 515,181
Cost of sales $HE A A (369,260) (300,174)
Gross profit E A 190,658 215,007
Other income I ON 6 40,958 15,800
Selling and distribution expenses HELRDHE R (13,272) (3,867)
Administrative expenses EIEER (20,164) (15,018)
Listing expenses &R = (11,207)
Other operating expenses Hup& £ B - (21)
Operating profit geERR 198,180 200,694
Finance costs B & AR 7 = =
Share of result of a joint venture B —HeEEER 17 = =
Profit before income tax BRAETS B AR R 8 198,180 200,694
Income tax expense TS & F X 9 (72,960) (99,943)
Profit for the year FRER 125,220 100,751
Other comprehensive income Hin 2 mEk s
(net of tax) (MBRBLE)
Exchange differences on translation 2 EGINEBYP HHRE 2
of financial statements M 5 =58
of foreign operations (1,296) (2,344)
Total comprehensive income FRE2EBBEE
for the year 123,924 98,407
Profit/(Loss) for the year LT ATEEERBRN
attributable to: (BR) :
Owners of the Company FiN/NEIEZ RSN 10 126,444 101,316
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R 2 (1,224) (565)
125,220 100,751
Total comprehensive income DTATEEAZERE
attributable to: e
Owners of the Company RAEHER A 125,148 98,972
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR R AR (1,224) (565)
123,924 98,407
Earnings per share for profit FREATEE AEMN
attributable to the owners of B ZzERAF
the Company during the year (AR¥5D)
(in RMB cents)
— Basic and diluted —HAREE 12 10.54 9.14
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB R

As at 31 March 2013

R-E—=#=A=+—8
2013 2012
—E-=F —_EF—=
Notes RME’000 RMB'000
M RE ARET T ARBET T
(Restated)
(&E=5)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WE MRE 14 2,771 3,737
Investment properties BEYE 15 111,625 72,272
Interest in a joint venture R—HEeEhEZER 17 174,149 95,149
Pledged deposits 2 HEIRF R 22 230,000 -
Deferred tax assets REFIAE E 26 = 1,406
518,545 172,564
Current assets REBEE
Properties held under development — BAZEFR ¥ % 18 1,066,044 1,078,260
Properties held for sale HEWE 19 311,164 338,468
Accounts receivable JFE LK BR 3R 20 12 577
Prepayments and other receivables T/ 3X T8 I H fib 8 Uk 5k 21 152,826 87,416
Pledged deposits BRI 22 31,724 24,403
Cash and bank balances & MIRTT 464 22 240,917 92,763
1,802,687 1,621,887
Current liabilities B B=Ri
Accounts payable FEATBR KR 23 29,309 17,756
Accruals, receipts in advance and FEETFRIE - ?Eqﬁl KIA N
other payables L FE TR 23 430,572 478,754
Provision for tax T IE B 134,809 121,537
Bank and other loans RITREME R 25 99,000 =
693,690 618,047
Net current assets RBEERE 1,108,997 1,003,840
Total assets less current liabilities ZAEERABEE 1,627,542 1,176,404
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Bank and other loans RITREMER 25 434,500 80,000
Deferred tax liabilities RIERHIEEE 26 1,978 =
436,478 80,000
Net assets REE 1,191,064 1,096,404
EQUITY fEm
Equity attributable to KAGEEANELER
the Company’s owners
Share capital A 7S 27 9,931 9,931
Reserves s 28 943,834 857,427
Proposed final dividend R AR ER AR B 11 38,741 29,264
992,506 896,622
Non-controlling interests FEERER 198,558 199,782
Total equity R 1,191,064 1,096,404
Chan Heung Ling Shi Feng
R e 2 g
Director Director
EZ EBZE
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Statement of Financial Position

B %R0 3R
As at 31 March 2013
RZE—=F=A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M aE AR¥T AREEF T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries SBT3 16 285,452 285,452
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables ~ JBff AR HEWRIE 21 159 298
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UG Y /B A /) 2 FE 24 309,601 299,385
Cash and bank balances R RIRIT4E 8 22 69 935
309,829 300,618
Current liabilities RBBEE
Accruals and other payables JEEtRIB R EMER KA 23 64 64
Amounts due to subsidiaries AL NG A ] 24 8,083 8,083
8,147 8,147
Net current assets RBEERE 301,682 292,471
Total assets less current BEERARBERB
liabilities/Net assets BEE 587,134 577,923
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to KAGEE ANELER
the Company’s owners
Share capital [ 27 9,931 9,931
Reserves f# 28 538,462 538,728
Proposed final dividend #R R BARR B 11 38,741 29,264
Total equity R 587,134 577,923
Chan Heung Ling Shi Feng
R 0 22 Alg
Director Director
EBEZE EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

i AT GEE 3 g
REEREER
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-ZT—=-F=-A=1+—HULEHFE

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

EINGE LN, T
Proposed Non-
Share Share  Statutory Capital  Exchange  Retained final controlling Total
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve* profits*  dividend Total interests equity
Rk
RE&  RORE AERE  ERRE  EXRE  ERER RERE i FEREZ  ERSE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR¥TR AR¥TR ARBTR ARETR
(Note 28()  (Note 28(ii))  (Note 28fiii))
(Wskas())  (Miskasfi))  (Misksii)
At 1 April 2011 ®Z%-—%mA-A - - 29,021 285,452 10,727 209,977 - 535,177 200,347 735,524
Arising from reorganisation and HERREFEREE
loan capitalisation (note 27(c)) (F3E27(0)) 4 285,411 - (285452 - - - - - -
Capitalisation issue (note 27(d) ERM BT (7)) 7407 (7.407) - - - - - - - -
Issuance of ordinary shares in connection 3t £ B TE @R (H5527(e)
with listing (note 27(e)) 2,483 259,990 - - - - - 262,473 - 262,473
Transactions with owners BREANZRS 9,931 537,994 - (285452 = S = 262,473 = 262,473
Profitfloss) for the year EngEf/ (BR) - - - - - 101316 - 101316 (565) 100,751
Exchange differences on translation of BB EBE HHE 2
financial statements of foreign operations & % 25 - - - - (2,344) - - (2,344) - (2,344)
Total comprehensive income for the year — FAZ BN ZEE - - - - 2,344) 101,316 = 98,972 (565) 98,407
Transfer to statutory reserve BREAEEE = = 12,851 = = (12,851) = = = =
Final dlvidend proposed FRER KHRE (HHE11)
for the year (note 11) - - - - - (29,264) 29,264 - - -
At 31 March 2012 R=F-Z§=f=1-H 9,931 537,99 4,872 - 8,383 269,178 29,264 896,622 199,782 1,096,404
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012
9,931 537,994 41872 - 8,383 269,178 29,264 896,622 199,782 1,096,404
Dividend paid (note 11) BITRE (HEn) - - - - - - (29264 (29.264) - (29264)
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS - - - - - - (29264 (29264) - (29.264)
Profit/(loss) for the year Rt/ (58) - - - - - 126444 - 126444 (1,200 12520
Exchange differences on translation of A E BN EBEH B R 2
financial statements of foreign operations & % 25 - - - - (1,29) - - (1,29) - (1,296)
Total comprehensive income for the year — FAZ BNz EE - - - - (1,29) 126444 - 125,148 (1204) 123924
Transfer to statutory reserve BREATEE = = 10,705 = = (10,705) = - = =
Final dlvidend proposed FRREFHRE
for the year (note 17) (Hietn) - - - - - (38,741) 38,741 - - -
At 31 March 2013 W-2-Z§=5=1-A 9,931 537,99 52,571 - 7,087 346,176 38,741 992,506 198,558 1,191,064
= The aggregate amount of these balances of RMB943,834,000  * ZERBESRA L ARM43,834,000T (=ZF
(2012: RMB857,427,000) in surplus is included as reserves in the — — 4 : AR¥857,427,0007C) i A fr & B 7
consolidated statement of financial position. MATRZEEA -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-T—=F=F=1+—ALFE

56

2013 2012
—E—=F —ET-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & AR T AREBFTT
(Restated)
(s&E7))
Cash flows from operating activities ZEZ ZEFIEERSHE
Profit before income tax B AT 15 B4 AR 198,180 200,694
Adjustments for: BTIIBEELARE:
Interest income LB A (7,393) (3,794)
Depreciation e 742 596
Loss on disposal/written off of HEMEME - BE
property, plant and equipment K& #E R A 6 3
Fair value adjustment on investment % &WE KBRS
properties and properties held XEREREWMEL
under development upon transfer N EFHE
to investment properties (32,380) (10,793)
Operating profit before = Mﬁ BERiz
working capital changes # i A 159,155 186,706
Decrease/(increase) in properties ! ?;5?‘:?3 MENRFEDME
held under development and A, ()
properties held for sale 49,683 (64,024)
Decrease/(increase) in FE U AR R A (180)
accounts receivable 565 (402)
Increase in prepayments and TERTRIB R E A
other receivables JF& LT3R T8 38 1 (60,074) (39,818)
Increase in accounts payable JE 11 BR SR 38 10 11,553 11,484
Decrease in accruals, receipts in FEETFRIE - FEUGRIA &
advance and other payables H & SRR R (51,425) (104,480)
Cash generated from/(used in) mEEBME (FTA)
operations B& 109,457 (10,534)
Interest received B FIE 1,085 2,534
Income tax paid EENRIEE (56,304) (73,174)
Net cash generated from/(used in) ARETE AR (BTA)
operating activities B2 FHE 54,238 (81,174)
Cash flows from investing RETBMELHESRE
activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE HWEREE
equipment (191) (3,040)
Proceed from disposal of property, HEME  WEREE
plant and equipment Fri§501R 49 =
Advance to a joint venture R—EEETESR (79,000) (5,019)
Increase in pledged deposits B3R TF 5K 0 (237,321) (4,037)
Net cash used in investing activities — % &% &) BT 3 £/ F 58 (316,463) (12,096)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

IIV-F

Iﬁﬁ/)lbi%

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HEZZT—=F=ZA=+—BLFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5 AR®T AREBFTT
(Restated)
(s&E7))
Cash flows from financing METBMELRSRE
activities
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary Bt _ETHE /T E @A 2
shares in connection with listing Fr185K718 - 273,108
Listing expenses rTmER - (10,635)
Proceeds from new borrowings FEEMREHIE 458,500 15,000
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (5,000) (210,000)
Dividend paid BT B (29,264) =
Interest paid BEAFE (13,541) (16,252)
Net cash generated from financing B & Z B TS < F5
activities 410,695 51,221
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BeERBEESESEYEM
and cash equivalents (B F5 148,470 (42,049)
Effect of foreign exchange rates, net [ER 7 & 2 5% (316) (2,345)
Cash and cash equivalents FNHeLREEEY
at beginning of the year 92,763 137,157
Cash and cash equivalents FREASRESEEY
at end of year 22 240,917 92,763
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 5 January 2011 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the principal place
of business of the Company is located at Room 1215,
Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau
Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements. The directors of the Company
considered Pan Hong Property Group Limited (“Pan Hong
Property”), a company listed on Singapore Exchange
Limited, as the ultimate holding company.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 52
to 146 have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") which
collectively includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations (“Int”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA"). The consolidated financial statements
also include the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2013 were approved for issue by the board of
directors (the “Board”) on 25 June 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-T-=F=A=T—BLFE

2.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

In current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations (the “new HKFRSs"”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s
financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1
April 2012.

Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of

Underlying Assets

Amendments to HKFRS 7

The adoption of these amended HKFRSs did not result
in substantial changes to the accounting policies of the
Group and had no material impact on how the results and
financial positions for the current and prior periods have
been prepared and presented.

The following new HKFRSs which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 have been
early adopted by the Group.

HKFRS10 Consolidated Financial
Statements

HKFRS11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in

Other Entities
Separate Financial

Statements
Investments in Associates

and Joint Ventures

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

LIE L

RAFE AEECERERATHES
BRI A G M 2R REIERT &R &
AIARKBRE ([#F]BBMHmEER])
HEASEEBALN _T——_FWHA—H
Fta  FRHMZ M mERAER

BB E R BE-SMEE
ETHRZERTA B

BAEGRTERIZE125% AT IR — Y o]
ZIERTA HHEE

RMZERET BB BRELRNLES
BHAKREZ ST RRELEAEHATE
HfRE R 2 AHE B ERE X
BEMBRRNBRERTE -

AEBCRAKBUTHIEEN B RS
ZHCHER-_ZT—=F—A—HHXZEH
W2 FE R AR

BB B HRELER e BWRE
F105%
B S R 22 R HFEZHE
F115%
EBMERE LA REMEEERZ
F129% =
BREGEERIE275% L AVAEU R e
—T——4F)
BB G ERIFE 285 HEE RN REE
(ZZ——%F) EZEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-T—=F=F=1+—ALFE

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)
HKFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether
or not that power is used in practice), exposure or rights
to variable returns from the investee and the ability to
use the power over the investee to affect those returns.
HKFRS 10 contains extensive guidance on the assessment
of control. For example, the standard introduces the
concept of “de facto” control where an investor can
control an investee while holding less than 50% of
the investee’s voting rights in circumstances where its
voting interest is of sufficiently dominant size relative
to the size and dispersion of those of other individual
shareholders to give it power over the investee. Potential
voting rights are considered in the analysis of control
only when these are substantive, i.e. the holder has the
practical ability to exercise them. The standard explicitly
requires an assessment of whether an investor with
decision making rights is acting as principal or agent
and also whether other parties with decision making
rights are acting as agents of the investor. An agent
is engaged to act on behalf of and for the benefit of
another party and therefore does not control the investee
when it exercises its decision making authority. The
accounting requirements in the existing HKAS 27 on
other consolidation related matters are carried forward
unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively.

HKFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 have the same basic
characteristics as joint ventures under HKAS 31. Joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures. Where the Group has rights to the assets
and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement,
it is regarded as a joint operator and will recognise its
interests in the assets, liabilities, income and expenses
arising from the joint arrangement. Where the Group
has rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement as
a whole, it is regarded as having an interest in a joint
venture and will apply the equity method of accounting.
HKFRS 11 does not allow proportionate consolidation. In
an arrangement structured through a separate vehicle, all
relevant facts and circumstances should be considered to
determine whether the parties to the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement. Previously,
the existence of a separate legal entity was the key factor
in determining the existence of a jointly controlled entity
under HKAS 31. HKFRS 11 is applied retrospectively.

SEE(F)
BERPBREENE10% - FESHBHRE

BEMBHRELENE 100G EFEME
HIREBEIAE —ZHERA-ZRE
EREENRERET (TRERLBART
E%EN) HRAWKRES 2 FEHEH
FRAESENANEERSRRET Z
AN EZFRRE REENERE
HlHE - BAEM B HREERNFE105RFE A
M 2 SRS - flan - ZERISIATE
PRSI 2 BUS - A R EARRZ
RREZBERDHBEN REEZRR
BBETNHE FEESHEREN
B BERKRETRAEIN0%ZER
BEDMAEHIRIRET - BERREEE
BrE (ARBABERENATEZS
KRR T EED IR E B - 3%
HRNAEELFEEAERREZIREER
NEFAXKREAFNITE URAEBR
REZEMTRENREFE ZREASND
TE-REABZEURKR-—TEAES—
FTRZHNETE RERLTELRRERE
WA RIRET - RBEB LS ERF
7 REMERAANRBBEEHC G RAEE
BAE - BBV mEERNFI105REEH
PR -

ERMBREZNSNS -HEZH

ERMBHRELRNE 1R 2 LR HE
HEBGTERFEINRAIECEELERER
MRZEARSH KAZHEIBREE?
BREELE - HAKEAEZARAR
HeBERBEBGAELAGBSE KSR
REEE URERAENARLHELEZ
BE AF WA 2R - HAKH
ERFZEAARF 2 EREEFE AW
BARAZCERAED W HEAES
G- BV BREENF1RLTE
AR OIGRA R -HEBERBILITAZE
BT MARBEEERBREET N
ER NBESEZILHZETELAE
EERRHZEEFE - AR BIER
B FERBER B ERFEINRAM
BZHAREHERELFECIERAE-
FREVEHREENE1RGEEHEM -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-T-=F=A=T—BLFE

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

HKFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the disclosures
requirements about interests in subsidiaries and
joint arrangements. It also introduces new disclosure
requirements, including those related to unconsolidated
structured entities. The general objective of the standard
is to enable users of financial statements to evaluate the
nature and risks of a reporting entity’s interests in other
entities and the effects of those interests on the reporting
entity’s financial statements. The directors conclude that
the adoption of HKFRS 12 has no material impact on
the Group’s financial statements, except for additional
disclosures for subsidiaries and joint arrangements.

In the course of the Group's reassessment of the
accounting for all of its investments in other entities, the
Group has determined that it controls one of the property
development projects held by its joint venture company
under the terms of the designated operating agreement
entered into between the Group and its joint venture
partner in respect of the project during the preceding
period. Accordingly, the Group now recognises the
assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the project in
its consolidated financial statements. The Group’s other
interests in the joint venture company continue to be
accounted for using the equity method. As the Group
obtained control of the project in the preceding period
the comparative information for the year ended 31 March
2012 has been restated. No additional consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 April 2011 is
presented as the position at that date is not affected.

BEE(F)

ERMBHEENE12F -REMERE
HmZRE

EEMBRELENZ12RBEEEHENBER
ARARRFEzREZWERE LEH
FMREEM B - ERTR S| AFTER
T ERAREGAELARERCHE
BME -ZEAZ —RBRRSHBERERE
REAFEREEBNEGBER 22
HEEREE ARZSEEHREER
MBRR T E - EFHERNBT ARG
¥R ZE R 581 25% 30 MR KR 18 2 B R Rk
EEEMEATE HHBRALARAR
BEZ B AN ERER S

RASEHENEMER I MAREEN
AHE SR ZBET  AREEHER  HRXK
PHRRBASEERE S B LAE
IV IEERE BTG LS E QB M
Bz AMEHRRER -t NEER
HREGEMBBRIBERZEEZEE
BE WARXE AEEREERAZ
Hp R EE R AR EAR AR
SECRRF ARG ZIER 2 6% -
BE_Z——_F=A=+—RHItFEZWL
REHMCKE - RN T ——FMA
—BZRRY EBREITE BB RN Z
B2 BIMNG B MR
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R AR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2013
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2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

The following presents the effect of above restatement
on the consolidated statement of financial position
comparing the restated 31 March 2012 balances to the
balances previously reported:

2. BFREXE(E)

IATRR EMERE T BR AR ZET (B
EEEN —E——F=—A=+—HZ&
HERES|RZIEHR) 2HE:

Group
r5E
Increase/
As Previously (decrease)
As Restated reported in net assets
EERE
RE mERE R #m,/ ()
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 31 March 2012 R-ZB--f=A=+—H AREFTT ARMEFTT ARMETFTT
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - = K & % 3,737 3,357 380
Interest in a joint venture R—HEEEbE I ER 95,149 176,649 (81,500)
Properties held under FERME
development 1,078,260 814,082 264,178
Prepayments and other TE A 3RIE R E A fE o IR
receivables 87,416 75,524 11,892
Pledge deposits EERES 24,403 23,333 1,070
Cash and bank balances Re LRITER 92,763 82,631 10,132
Accounts payable FESBR TR (17,756) (6,643) (11,113)
Accruals, receipts in FEEHFUIE - TBUEIE &
advance and other payables  E i JE 4 ZUE (478,754) (363,589) (115,165)
Provision for tax MIERE (121,537) (121,663) 126
Bank and other loans BITREMER (80,000) = (80,000)
Net Assets EERE 683,681 683,681 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_T—=F=FA=1+—RALFE

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued) 2. EFEXE(E)

The following presents the effect of above restatement INTERTR LGS E2E SR 2ES] (A
on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income REEN F—FE s SHEREER 2
comparing the restated prior year amounts to the SR ZTE:

amounts previously reported:

Group
rEE
Increase/
As Previously (decrease)
As Restated reported in profit
= Rl
KE5| WMERMEEH  Hm OED)
For the year ended BE-Z——F RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
31 March 2012 ZA=Zt+—-HLEE ARBETFTT AR#EFTT ARBEFTT
Other income EH A 15,800 15,798 2
Selling and distribution HERDIHEER
expenses 3,867 3,447 (420)
Administrative expenses EREH 15,018 11,955 (3,063)
Share of result of FEh—ReEEER
a joint venture - 3,481 3,481
Profit for the year F W F 100,751 100,751 =
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
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2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

The following new and amended HKFRSs which are
potentially relevant to the Group’s financial statements,
have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group:

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
(Amendments) HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle?
Amendments to Presentation of Items of
HKAS 1 (Revised) Other Comprehensive
Income’
Amendments to Presentation — Offsetting
HKAS 32 Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®
Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting
HKFRS 7 Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-T-=F=A=T—BLFE

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) - Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

The improvements made amendments to four standards.

()

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments clarify that the requirement
to present a third statement of financial
position when an entity applies an accounting
policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective
restatement or reclassification of items in its
financial statements is limited to circumstances
where there is a material effect on the information
in that statement of financial position. The date
of the opening statement of financial position
is the beginning of the preceding period and
not, as at present, the beginning of the earliest
comparative period. The amendments also clarify
that, except for disclosures required by HKAS
1.41-44 and HKAS 8, the related notes to the third
statement of financial position are not required
to be presented. An entity may present additional
voluntary comparative information as long as that
information is prepared in accordance with HKFRS.
This may include one or more statements and not
a complete set of financial statements. Related
notes are required for each additional statement
presented.

2. EIEE(#E)
BERMBHREER (BFIX) —BBUHK
BEEN_BRRAFE_FT——FBH2
FENE

%5 BUE IR R E R ERT -

=13

() BEETEREZEILHBHRZEZE
7,

ZEBI RS FREEBRYRE

SRR SRNE B REEER
BYPEIRETOEMENE =5
B AR R 2 iR E B E AR
BHRRARRNERBRERTEZE
S i B AR R R B B B R —ER
BERR N MIE(EEBAA
I BREBAHRBMEG ZE-Z
ZLIEFIEB BREB G ERE
1.41- 44 R BB ST ERIZESHR R
EZHBEIN BBEEE =58k
MKV E@H T -EEA 25
SNEFELLEE R AR AR E
BBV BRELENFER - WA BIE
—RREMBER MALIE—ETE
MK -T2 SBINRKRHE A
25 HEEME -
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2.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) - Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

The amendments clarify that items such as
spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing
equipment are recognised as property, plant and
equipment when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, such
items are classified as inventory.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

The amendments clarify that income tax relating
to distributions to holders of an equity instrument
and to transaction costs of an equity transaction
should be accounted for in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes. Depending on the circumstances
these items of income tax might be recognised in
equity, other comprehensive income or in profit or
loss.

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendments clarifies that in interim financial
statements, a measure of total assets and liabilities
for a particular reportable segment need to be
disclosed when the amounts are regularly provided
to the chief operating decision maker and there
has been a material change in the total assets
and liabilities for that segment from the amount
disclosed in the last annual financial statements.

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited 275 f5 i 2 & & 5 R A A)

Annual Report 2012/2013 4 $i

BEE(F)

BEBUBREER (BFTEX) —BBYK

BEEN_BRANFE_FT——FBH2
FEXGE (&)
(i) BEBETEREI6HEYF* BER

(iii)

(iv)

R1E

CEB BERER
SHAFANL FER
oA 5 A BRI
Sl L

BB ERENELHITE: 2
%

ZEERRF BARATARHA
AFEEDIRERARZR S 2R 5
RAHBZAER RREEES
FHERAIF1 2R B HAR - RED
RIS L PTG TR IR B AT RE 0
@ Hib 2 ERA KBS RER

BEBETERE3MH PR BIRE

SZEFER BB NP HPBRR
A - 8 B — 8 E R B oy BR W AT
BrEENBBHRAERENRTIE
RERREER MEOBEE
RAEBERERE—DFERHHRE

B REEREHE  BIAR
BERHMEENABREZTE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-T-=F=A=T—BLEE

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the Group
to separate items presented in other comprehensive
income into those that may be reclassified to profit and
loss in the future (e.g. revaluations of available—for—sale
financial assets) and those that may not (e.g. revaluations
of property, plant and equipment). Tax on items of
other comprehensive income is allocated and disclosed
on the same basis. The amendments will be applied
retrospectively.

Amendments to HKAS 32 - Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off under
HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement,
irrespective of whether they are set off under HKAS 32.

BEE(F)

BB EAEIR (EBT) 2 BT 5 -
SHIEMmRERSZER

BREGHERFE IR (BEFT) 2ETAR
EASESREMEZEW G2 2ERD
RAURNRBREFDEERRKRCZER
B (Rt hESMEEZER) MRS E
ENoREBAaKkcRFREAE (WYX
WEMEEZERL) REMEERER
BREMZ MBS REREEETHEEME
BoFERIBEENER-
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HEMEERTRAR

SFEREBY BB G ERE325MA
FER eI BRB R E - &35 5 BB A
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BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)
HKFRS 9 - Financial instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair
value gains or losses will be recognised in profit or loss
except for those non-trade equity investments, which
the entity will have a choice to recognise the gains and
losses in other comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries
forward the recognition, classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except
for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair
value attributable to change in credit risk of that liability
is recognised in other comprehensive income unless
that would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch.
In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for de-recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

HKFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how
to measure fair value when it is required or permitted
by other standards. The standard applies to both
financial and non-financial items measured at fair value
and introduces a fair value measurement hierarchy.
The definitions of the three levels in this measurement
hierarchy are generally consistent with HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines fair value as
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an
exit price). The standard removes the requirement to
use bid and ask prices for financial assets and liabilities
quoted in an active market. Rather the price within the
bid—ask spread that is most representative of fair value
in the circumstances should be used. It also contains
extensive disclosure requirements to allow users of the
financial statements to assess the methods and inputs
used in measuring fair values and the effects of fair value
measurements on the financial statements. HKFRS 13 can
be adopted early and is applied prospectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these pronouncements.
Directors so far concluded that the application of these
pronouncements will have no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new and revised HKFRSs and the impacts
on the Group's consolidated financial statements, if any,
are disclosed in note 2.

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except for
investment properties which are measured at fair
values. The measurement bases are fully described
in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgment of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.

Basis of consolidation and business
combination

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (note 3.3) made up to 31 March each
year.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Basis of consolidation and business
combination (continued)

Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the
Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition date fair
value. The Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interest that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Basis of consolidation and business
combination (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained
within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair
value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified
as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or
loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from
business combinations whose acquisition dates
preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group
first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted
for in accordance with the transition requirements
in the standard. Such balances are not adjusted
upon first application of the standard. Subsequent
revisions to estimates of such consideration
are treated as adjustments to the cost of these
business combinations and are recognised as part
of goodwill.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interest and the non-controlling
interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation and business
combination (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus the
non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interest having a
deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4

Joint arrangements

Joint arrangements are classified as either a joint
operation or joint venture, based on the rights
and obligations arising from the contractual
arrangements between the parties to the
arrangement.

Joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

The Group’s interest in a joint venture is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group's share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of the post acquisition results
and reserves of joint ventures is included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investments in the joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of joint
ventures is included as part of the Group's
investments in joint ventures and is not individually
tested for impairment.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

35

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items
that are measured at historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into RMB. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into RMB at
the closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the translation reserve in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5

3.6

Foreign currency translation (continued)

When a foreign operation is disposed of, such
exchange differences are reclassified from equity
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration for the sale of properties, rendering
of services and the use by others of the Group's
assets yielding interest and dividends, net of
rebates and discounts. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as
follows:

Revenue arising from sale of properties held
for sale is recognised upon the transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
these properties held for sale to the customers.
Revenue is recognised upon the signing of the
sale and purchase agreement or the issue of an
occupation permit by the relevant government
authorities, whichever is the later. Deposits and
instalments received from customers prior to the
date of revenue recognition are included in current
liabilities as receipts in advance.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease terms.

3. IEEBREMSE(E)

35 SME‘mE(E)

EHEBNIEBE FHENER
mEDRENBEESBRD 2 HE RS
BR800

3.6 WEER

W BEMEHEEZNRE RHER
BREMATEARNEEEEER
M R B 2 X FE (B0 K
) o B a4 Al BE R AAER
- B4 R A (A05E R ) BE Rl 5
FHE WERIRAT T AR

HEFENEEEZ NS E%F
#%%%%E%Zﬂﬁ&@ﬁm

REHBEEEPRHER - WER
FI B Btk ok AR B U AR 3
ﬁﬁ%ﬁT (AL E RE) B HE

R o £ Ui 25 FERR E%%%Eﬁ%%
HX,Z.JJE& 7 HE R RIFF AR ®
%ﬁ#ﬁﬁ%wﬁo

F B UL A 32 B BRI K AR R 41
EERER -

REEHERE 2 ESWARELY
GREBEZHARNEE R -

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited /&% E i E £ E AR A A
Annual Report 2012/2013 48 #i

75



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RME

PN

2 =]

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-T—=F=F=1+—ALFE

76

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to the working condition and location
for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included
in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight line method, at the
following rates per annum:

Computers and 20.0%
other equipment
Motor vehicles 20.0%

The shorter of
the lease terms and 2.5%

Buildings

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.8

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a property
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

On initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, unless it is still in the course of
construction or development at the reporting date
and its fair value cannot be reliably determined at
that time.

Fair value is determined by external professional
valuers with sufficient experience with respect to
both the location and the nature of the investment
properties. The carrying amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position reflect
the prevailing market conditions at the reporting
date.

Gain or loss arising from either a change in
fair value or the sale of investment properties
is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year in which it
arises.

For a transfer from properties held under
development to investment properties that is
carried at fair value, any difference between fair
value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.8

3.9

Investment properties (continued)

Properties under construction or development for
future use as an investment property are classified
as investment property under construction. If
the fair value cannot be reliably determined, the
investment property under construction will be
measured at cost until such time as fair value can
be determined or construction is completed.

When the Group completes the construction or
development of a self-constructed investment
property, any difference between the fair value
of the property at the completion date and its
previous carrying amount is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and the interests
in subsidiaries and a joint venture are subject to
impairment testing and are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the assets’
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less cost to sell,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash generating unit).
As a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.9

3.10

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases where substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets remain within
the lessor are accounted for as operating lease.
Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight line basis over
the lease terms except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold interests in land are up-front payments
to acquire the land use right. The payments are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated
on the straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Leases (continued)

For leasehold interest in land included in properties
held under development and properties held for
sale, the amortisation of prepaid land lease is
capitalised as part of the building costs during
the development period but charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for completed properties. Other amortisation of
prepaid land lease is expensed.

Properties leased out under operating leases are
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as investment properties. The recognition
of rental income is set out in note 3.6.

Financial assets

The Group's accounting policies for financial assets
are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade date. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the
financial asset.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Loans
and receivables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate and
transaction cost.

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial asset includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more
of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The amount
of the loss is recognised in the profit or loss of
the period in which the impairment occurs. In
relation to trade and notes receivables, a provision
for impairment is made when there is objective
evidence (such as the probability of insolvency
or significant financial difficulties of the debtor)
that the Group will not be able to collect all of
the amounts due under the original terms of the
invoice. Except for trade and notes receivables, the
carrying amount of loans and receivables is directly
reduced by any identified amount of impairment.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal
is recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Properties held under development

Properties held under development which are
held for future sale are included in current assets
and comprise land held under operating lease
(note 3.10) and aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, wages, and other
expenses (“development costs”). Properties held
under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Other expenses
included (a) those costs that are incurred in
bringing the properties held under development
to their present location and condition; and (b)
a systematic allocation of fixed overheads that
are incurred on development of properties. Fixed
overheads are indirect costs which remain relatively
constant regardless of the size or volume of the
development.

On completion, the properties are transferred to
properties held for sale. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and applicable selling
expenses.

Properties under development are classified as
current assets unless the construction period of the
relevant property development project is expected
to complete beyond normal operating cycle.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13

3.14

Properties held for sale

In case of completed properties developed by the
Group, cost is determined by apportionment of
the total development costs for that development
project, attributable to the unsold properties.
The cost of completed properties held for sale
comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition.

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated selling expenses.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting
date. They are calculated according to the tax
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods
to which they relate, based on the taxable profit
for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss.

3. IEETBREE (£

3.13 #FEWE

i B EBEERFE 2 WE B
TiE RS REMEE(NFEIER
ZHBKNANBEMET HIELE
ZERTYHEIKABEEEEK
I HRRR R RS F BEBUR AT
TE 40 R AR BT EE A 2 EL M AR AN 8
5}20

FEMELRA R AT ZIRFE (A
BIRERE)JIR - IR FERA
BEBERES 2 AT EER A H
ERX-

314 ISRz E T ERE

PRS B MAMIE MR TR IR -

EHPEHEER LA EBRER
Al X368 1 3R 25 Bl 8 () B A Bl 2
et MmN & B # AR 2
BEESRE DREEB BN B
B2 ERARE RBBED  REAR
FRZERBSHNEHE A A
MREEXRBBEZEHNBERRE
RBREMX — 8B -

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited /&% E i E £ EHR A A
Annual Report 2012/2013 48 #i

85



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RME

VAN
A

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-T—=F=F=1+—ALFE

86

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.
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3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

3.14 FSBzETER (&)

3.14 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at
the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly to equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. For the presentation of purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.16

3.17

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received
on the issuance of shares over the par value. Any
transaction costs associated with the issuance of
shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the
equity transaction.

Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance which is available to
its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions to
the MPF Scheme by the Group and employees
are made based on a percentage of employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Group has
participated in a local municipal government
retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”),
whereby the Group is required to contribute
a certain percentage of basic salaries of its
employees to the Scheme to fund their retirement
benefits. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of all existing and future retired
employees in the PRC. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the Scheme is to pay the
ongoing required contributions under the Scheme
mentioned above. The Group’s contributions to
the Scheme are expensed as incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.17

3.18

Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include account
and other payables and bank and other loans.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All interest related charges are
recognised in accordance with the Group's policy
on borrowing costs (note 3.21).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in respective
carrying amount is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.18

3.19

Financial liabilities (continued)
Bank and other loans

Bank and other loans are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Bank and
other loans are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the loans
using the effective interest method.

Bank and other loans are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are
recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.19

3.20

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course
of the allocation of purchase price to the assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination.
They are initially measured at fair value at the date
of acquisition and subsequently measured at the
higher of the amount that would be recognised in
a comparable provision as described above and the
amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisation, if appropriate.

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Financial guarantees issued (continued)

3.21

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
as deferred income within account and other
payables. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies applicable to that category of
asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued.

In addition, provisions are recognised if and
when it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the current carrying
amount i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other finance
costs are expensed.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.21 Borrowing costs (continued)

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are
being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its

intended use or sale are completed.

3.22 Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained
profits within equity, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends are approved and

declared, they are recognised as a liability.

3.23 Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if

that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the

Group;

(i) has significant influence over the

Group; or

(iii) is @ member of key management
personnel of the Group or the

Company'’s parent.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.23 Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.23

3.24

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below:

Fair value of investment properties and
properties held under development upon
transfer to investment properties

The investment properties and properties held
under development upon transfer to investment
properties of the Group were stated at fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy.
The fair value of the investment properties is
determined by a firm of independently qualified
professional surveyors and the fair value of
investment properties as at the reporting dates
and properties held under development upon
transfer to investment properties are set out in
notes 15 and 18 respectively. Such valuation was
based on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

Impairment of accounts and other receivables

The Group’s management assesses the
collectability of accounts and other receivables.
This estimate is based on the credit history of
its customers or counterparties and the current
market condition. Management reassesses the
impairment loss at the reporting date.

Net realisable value of properties held for sale
and properties held under development

Management determines the net realisable value
of properties held for sale and properties under
development by using prevailing market data
such as most recent sale transactions and market
survey reports available from independent property
valuers, and internal estimates of costs based on
quotes by suppliers.

These estimates require judgment as to the
anticipated sale prices by reference to recent
sales transactions in nearby locations, rate of
new property sales, marketing costs (including
price discounts required to stimulate sales) and
the expected costs of completion of properties,
the legal and regulatory framework and general
market conditions.
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.2

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from sale
of properties held for sale during the year as
disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements. The
assessment of when an entity has transferred the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to buyer
requires examination of the circumstances of the
transaction. In most cases, the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership coincides with the transfer
of the legal title or the passing of possession to
the buyer or a completion certificate is issued by
the relevant government authorities. The Group
believes that its recognition basis of sales as set
out in note 3.6 is appropriate and is the current
practice in the PRC.

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the provision of
taxation and the timing of payment of the related
taxation. Where the final tax outcome is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in periods in which such
determination are made.

The Group is subject to Land Appreciation Tax
(“LAT") in the PRC. However, the implementation
and settlement of this tax varies among various tax
jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group has
not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with
any local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining
the amount of the land appreciation and its
related LAT. The Group recognised LAT based on
management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the tax rules.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is
engaged in business activities from which the Group may
earn revenue and incur expenses, and is identified on the
basis of the internal management reporting information
that is provided to and regularly reviewed by the Group’s
executive directors in order to allocate resources and
assess performance of the segment. For the years
presented, executive directors have determined that the
Group has only one single business component/reportable
segment as the Group is only engaged in the business of
sale and lease of properties which is the basis to allocate
resources and assess performance.

The geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in
the case of property, plant and equipment, the location
of the operation. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the majority of the Group’s operation and
centre of management are sourced from its subsidiaries
in Jiangxi Province, the PRC, which considered that the
operation base of the Group is domiciled in the PRC, as
one geographical location and therefore, no analysis of
geographical information is presented.

The total revenue from external customers is mainly
sourced from the PRC. The total revenue is disclosed in
note 6.
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6.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, and other

6. WA REMUY A

FRERZBA (TR/AEE 2 EER) M

income recognised during the year are as follows: EfW AT :
2013 2012
—B-=F —ECF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBFIT
(Restated)
(gE5))
Revenue WA
Sale of properties held for sale HEFEME 559,918 515,181
Other income Hilr A
Net fair value gain on investment KREMERERE
properties and properties held KEME R 2 FEF
under development upon transfer N EREFRE
to investment properties 32,380 10,793
Interest income MEMA
— from bank deposits —RBIEITHER 3,773 2,534
— from other receivables — R B H fth fE Uk 5K I8 3,620 1,260
Rental income HEBA 1,155 1,204
Sundry income HIBUWA 30 9
40,958 15,800
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7.  FINANCE COSTS 7. ®EREX
2013 2012
—E-=F —F——F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T ARMEF T
(Restated)
(g&E7)
Interest charges on financial REBHEBATEREZ
liabilities stated at amortised cost: cREEZFEEX:
Bank loans wholly repayable ARAFRNEZEEEY
within five years RITENR 11,994 4,809
Other loans wholly repayable ERAFRNEHEEREZ
within five years HEER 4,790 1,720
16,784 6,529
Less: amount capitalised in B BEEERMEERFAES
properties held under ME 2
development (16,784) (6,529)

The weighted average capitalisation rate of borrowings
was 6.25% (2012: 6.68%, restated) per annum for the

year.
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PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. BRFTEHAIER
2013 2012
—E-=fF —F——F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T ARMEF T
(Restated)
(g&E5))
Profit before income tax is arrived at B P45 25 Al A
after charging/(crediting): Ik (FEA)
AT EEBER:
Auditors’ remuneration ZER B & 611 628
Cost of properties held for sale BRAEAL 2 HFEME
recognised as expense B AR 338,177 271,676
Depreciation (note 14(b)) E (MsE14(b)) 742 596
Exchange (gain)/loss, net BN (W), EiEEHE (11) 157
Loss on disposal/written off of property, BEE MW E FE &
plant and equipment B Ei] 6 3
Operating lease charge in respect of T REFZREERE
land and buildings il 659 398
Less: amount capitalised in properties 8 : 2 W E AL A
held under development FERYE s ©HE (70) (152)
589 246
Outgoings in respect of investment HEXNEEBRSKAZ
properties that generated rental BREMERERA2RAX
income during the year 221 213
Staff costs, including directors’ BINA(BREEEWS)
emoluments (note 13) (Ft5E13)
- Wages and salaries —ITENE® 14,084 10,250
— Retirement benefit scheme —RIRAE M E B K
contributions —EREHKETE
— defined contribution plans 1,456 918
Less: amount capitalised in properties  J& : B E &KL 1EA
held under development RERYEZ ST (6,328) (3,978)
9,212 7,190

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited /£ E i E £ EHR A A
Annual Report 2012/2013 48 #i

103



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R AR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE-T-SF=AST-ALFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FEBMAX
2013 2012
—E—=F —T—=
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T AREBFTT
Current tax — the PRC B EiSiIE — P
Current year REFE
— Enterprise income tax (“EIT") — 1 EMEH 36,532 53,663
- LAT — IR ER 33,044 53,876
69,576 107,539
Current tax — Hong Kong BEABIE—F B
Over provision in respect of prior years i@ 1 4F [ 381 58 # 1 - (238)
69,576 107,301
Deferred income tax (note 26) IEFE BB (M93E26) 3,384 (7,358)
Total income tax expense FriSBi X A& 72,960 99,943

EIT has been provided on the estimated profits of
subsidiaries operating in the PRC at 25% (2012: 25%).

Under the law of the PRC on EIT, corporate withholding
income tax is levied on the foreign investor for the
dividends distributed out of the profits generated by the
foreign investment enterprises. The Group's applicable
withholding income tax rate is at 10 % (2012: 10%).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including cost and land use rights,
borrowing costs, business tax and all property
development expenditures. The tax is incurred upon
transfer of property ownership. There are certain
exemptions available for the sales of ordinary residential
properties if the appreciation values do not exceed 20%
of the total deductible items (as defined in the relevant
PRC tax laws). Sales of commercial properties are not
eligible for such an exemption.

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2012:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group
had no estimated assessable profits arising in or derived
from Hong Kong for both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-T-=F=A=T—BLFE

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Fre®mx (&)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and RERBEFTEMSHERAYESHERN
accounting profit at applicable tax rates is as follows: ™
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBETF T
Profit before income tax B P15 5 A& A 198,180 200,694
Tax on profit before income tax, B P 15 350 Al & A A5 18 -
calculated at the rates applicable to RBEBATEER RN Z
profit in the jurisdiction concerned BMARERGE 47,362 55,977
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBMBA ZRIBLE (629) (402)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ~ TAIHFF S 2 T IB R £ 1,228 4,470
Provision of LAT for the year FA T H I ET R 33,044 53,876
Tax effect on EIT of LAT payable FEA L i i TEE“EZTE%
BIRS P B (8,261) (13,469)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss RERMIEEEZ
BE e 1,002 1,506
Utilisation of tax loss previously EAEFARER
not recognised WIAEE (1,775) (1,777)
Over provision in respect of prior years i@ {E 4F [ 31 58 5 5 - (238)
Tax effect of withholding tax FEMB 2 HIETE 989 =
Income tax expense RS 72,960 99,943
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE 10. ARAARHEBEAEEFREF

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Among the consolidated profit attributable to owners
of the Company during the year of approximately
RMB126,444,000 (2012: RMB101,316,000), a profit of
RMB38,475,000 (2012: RMB30,586,000) has been dealt
with the financial statements of the Company.

Sino Harl

FAN-AREEBABLGZEERNOAAN
R¥5126,444,000C (=T ——F: AR
101,316,0007T) * H & A R ¥38,475,000
TCZ S T —— % : AR¥30,586,000
T)ERARRHBRRANRIE -

bour Property Group Limited /& EHE £ EHR A A
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11. DIVIDENDS

Dividends of the Company attributable to the year are as

g

BEAFEARRZREMT

follows:
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFT
Proposed final dividend — HK4 cents BR R B B — F 1
(2012: HK3 cents) per ordinary share T3 A% 4B (L
(note (i) and (ii)) T — 330D
(B REG) B i) ) 38,741 29,264

Notes:

(i) At a meeting held on 27 May 2013, the directors
proposed a final dividend of HK4 cents per ordinary
share, amounting to HK$48,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB38,741,000) for the year ended 31
March 2013, and the proposal will be submitted for
formal approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting held on 25 July 2013. This final
dividend will be reflected as an appropriation of retained
profits for the year ending 31 March 2014.

(ii) At a meeting held on 28 May 2012, the directors
proposed a final dividend of HK3 cents per ordinary
share, amounting to HK$36,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB29,264,000) for the year ended
31 March 2012. The proposal was approved by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on
25 July 2012. This final dividend was reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ended 31
March 2013.

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited 275 f5 i 2 & & 5 R A A)
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e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-T-=F=A=T—BLFE

12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR PROFIT
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company of RMB126,444,000
(2012: RMB101,316,000) and the ordinary shares of
1,200,000,000 (2012: weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,108,767,000) in issue during the
year.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the weighted average
number of ordinary shares used to calculate the basic
earnings per share includes the 900,000,000 ordinary
shares issued immediately before the listing of the
Company’s ordinary shares on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (note 27), being
assumed to be in issue throughout the year ended 31
March 2012.

The diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic
earnings per share, as the Group has no dilutive potential
shares during the current and prior years.

12.

ARRAFEEAREBRN ZEBRER

BRERBFIZAQNGES AFENFRE
FAREE126,444,000T (ZZT——F: A
R¥101,316,0007T) R F NS 1T &M
1,200,000,0000% (ZZE ——F : T@R 2
hNFEF19801,108,767,0000% ) 51 & -

HE-_Z——F=A=1+—HIFE H
REtEGRERER 2 L BRINETFTE
BREEZEANALBERETEBHER S
AR A7 E 4R £ 8T,2900,000,0008% 2
BITERAL (MIFE27) @ BIMRERZER D R
BHE-_ZT——F=A=1+—RHIFE2¥
EFEEEIT

R AREEAFREBEFRERYL EE
E#skt AEREERNEGREN
AR -

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited /&% E i E £ E AR A A

Annual Report 2012/2013 48 #i

107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2013
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE 13. EEFM EE2ERSFMATIRSER
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR EEEMWE
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE#M£
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the BE TR REE RGN E
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong 16 G R ESHeW T :

Companies Ordinance are as follows:

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
Fe 2R RINERIE
ne HitfEF RERA 3 o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETTL ARBETT ARBTR

Year ended HE-Z2-=%

31 March 2013 ZA=Zt-RLEE
Executive directors — H7TEE
Mr. Shi Feng A OBEAE 650 - - 2 672
Mr. Wong Lui I #EE 487 92 127 12 718
Non-executive director 8772 %
Ms. Chan Heung Ling RII¥% &+ 650 126 54 - 830
Indevendent non-  BUHHITEE

executive directors
Mr. Lee Man To THERLE 146 - - - 146
Mr. Xie Gang # mxE 97 - - - 97
Ms. Zhang Juan & BRt 97 - - - 97

2,127 218 181 34 2,560

Year ended HEZT—-fF

31 March 2012 ZA=t-BLLEE
Executive directors — HiTEE
Mr. Shi Feng A OBEAE 491 - - 20 511
Mr. Wong Lui T OBrE 363 90 128 7 588
Non-executive director 8772 %
Ms. Chan Heung Ling RII¥% &+ 492 346 55 = 893
Indevendent non-  BUHHITEE

executive directors
Mr. Lee Man To THERLE 111 - - - 111
Mr. Xie Gang #omxE 74 - - - 74
Ms. Zhang Juan K BRL 74 = = = 74

1,605 436 183 27 2,251

There is no arrangement under which a director FA HMESEREXRERET
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during NS 2L (ZE—ZF ]&) -

the year (2012: Nil).
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13.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Mr. Shi Feng is also the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and his emolument disclosed above
includes those of services rendered by him as the
Chief Executive Officer.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group include three (2012: two) directors,
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures
above. The emoluments of the remaining two
(2012: three) highest paid individuals, whose
emoluments fell within the salary band of Nil to
HK$1,000,000, for the year ended 31 March 2013
were as follows:

13. ESFM ZERSFMALIRSER
EEEWE (&)

() ESM= (&)

AEEETRARBZEARRIT
B MEXABEEZR M B
HERBFEAITE PR RS 2 B

(b) HERSHFMAL

AEEBRERETMALTRIE=S
G(ZE——F WRB)ES HH
CHREXZEBE -BE-_T—=
FZRA=Z+—BUFE % TMW
H(ZE——F  ZR)& D
ArTZME (HFeBEANTEE
1,000,000 L2 ) a0 T

2013 2012
—_ZF—-= —ET——fF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR TR AREF T

Salaries, allowances and Fe R EEMET
other benefits 603 539
Discretionary bonuses I IEAL 97 231

Retirement benefit scheme BRIREFIET BT

contributions 12 42
712 812

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office during the year
(2012: Nil).

FRNAEERERTAESENR
SEBA T HEMBEEA A
S NN SR B 12 2 5% [Bh o Bk Bk e 1
(ZE—Z=F:8\)o
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (continued)

(c) Senior management emolument

The emoluments paid or payable to members of

13.

EEFM TERSFMALIRER

EEEME (&

(0 FHREZEME

ENENFESTEREEREKE

non-director senior management were within the ZMeEEWNT
following bands:
2013 2012
—E—-=F —Eg—=
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,00078 7T 6 6
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. WX -BERRE
The Group AEE
Computers
and other Motor
equipment vehicles Buildings Total
ElR
Hit% AE BF @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 April 2011 R-ZE——FMA—-H
Cost B 747 1,943 599 3,289
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z:HTE (318) (742) (171 (1,231)
Net carrying amount KA 429 1,201 428 2,058
Year ended 31 March 2012 HEZ-Z-_f&
ZA=t-BLEE
Opening net carrying amount H 18RS & 429 1,201 428 2,058
Additions RE
As previously reported MmERMZR 197 1,922 = 2,119
Avising from re-assessment of  E &£ B EM AL BR
accounting policies 243 678 - 921
As restated RE 440 2,600 = 3,040
Written off i 3) = = 3)
Depreciation e
As previously reported PUE TR (199) (592) 27) (818)
Arising from re-assessment of 4 B EFTAE G BR
accounting policies (64) (477) - (541)
As restated E| (263) (1,069) (27) (1,359)
Exchange realignment EHRAE - 1 - 1
Closing net carrying amount SRR A FE 603 2,733 401 3,737
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HE-T-=F=A=T—BLFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERRKE (&)
(continued)
The Group (continued) AEE(E)
Computers
and other Motor
equipment vehicles Buildings Total
ERR
Hit B RE BF @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 March 2012 and R-E--§=h=+-H
1 April 2012 R=Z--fWA—H
Cost %N
As previously reported MER 2R 911 3,865 599 5,375
Arising from re-assessment of £ B BT EEF IR
accounting policies 243 678 - 921
As restated L] 1,154 4,543 599 6,296
Accumulated depreciation 2T E
As previously reported MER 2] (487) (1,333) (198) (2,018)
Arising from re-assessment of 4% B EX TG E IR
accounting policies (64) (477) - (541)
As restated E| (551) (1,810) (198) (2,559)
Net carrying amount EEFE 603 2,733 401 3,737
Year ended 31 March 2013 HZE-E-—-=&
ZA=T-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount 341 8R % (€ 603 2,733 401 3,737
Additions NE 191 - - 191
Written off i = (55) = (55)
Depreciation nE (279) (788) 27) (1,094)
Exchange realignment BN R = (8) = (8)
Closing net HAREHFE
carrying amount 515 1,882 374 2,711
At 31 March 2013 R=B-=#=ZA=+-H
Cost KA 1,345 4,480 599 6,424
Accumulated depreciation  ZFfHTE (830) (2,598) (225) (3,653)
Net carrying amount RESE 515 1,882 374 2,771
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HE-T—=F=F=1+—ALFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y¥E BERRE (&)
(continued)
(@)  Buildings held by the Group are located in the PRC. (@ AEBERFEZEFURFE-
(b)  Depreciation charges have been included in: by HERAXBEFA:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBEFTT
(Restated)
(ggE5))
Consolidated statement of e MR &
financial position
— capitalised in properties held ~ —& (b {EAFIZ T
under development L/ES 352 763
Consolidated statement of FEEIERER
comprehensive income
- selling and distribution —HERDHER
expenses 142 129
— administrative expenses —1THRER 600 467
742 596
1,094 1,359
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REYXE
The Group N EE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFTT
Carrying amount at beginning of REF 2 BREE
the year 72,272 66,582
Transfer from properties held under ElEE et
development (note 18) (KFsx18) 37,125 -
Sale of investment properties HEREME - (5,103)
Net fair value change credited to FFAGEEEERERZ
the consolidated statement of NEEZE TR
comprehensive income 2,228 10,793
Carrying amount at end of the year RERZEHEE 111,625 72,272

The investment properties included property interest
in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring in
2043 (2012: 2043). As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, the
building ownership certificates of certain investment
properties of the Group have not yet been obtained. In
the opinion of the independent PRC legal advisors of
the Group, the Group is entitled to obtain the building
ownership certificates without legal impediment and
is entitled to lawfully and validly use the investment
properties during the year.

At 31 March 2013, an investment property of
approximately RMB37,125,000 (2012: Nil) was pledged
against other loans of the Group (note 25).

The fair value of the investment properties at 31 March
2013 and 2012 was revalued by Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLLSCAA"), a
firm of independent qualified professional surveyors who
have the recent experience in the location and category
of property being valued, which was based on the direct
comparison approach and the investment method by
capitalising the net rental income derived from the
existing tenancy with due allowance for the reversionary
value of the properties as at 31 March 2013 and 2012.

REMERFENRTREZ LR
HERR-_ZEN="F(ZF—=F: =%
N=F)@m R_BE—=FR_F——F
ZA=t—B AEBZETEREDMEN
KB EEMEEF AEEZBIFEH
FERBEMRA AEEERRSEEMHA
EEMITELEERTAENRERNEEM
BB ERREDE-

RZEBE—=%F=A=1+—0 1REWEN
AR¥E37,1250000 (ZE——F#E) ]}
EBARER 2z M ER 2T (HE25) °

REMER T —=FR-T—=-F=H
=t+—BZAFEIHEEEBEGED
¥BUERERZAHER CBIEE
BEERSMITHEBITEETGHREN
BRARMEITHE - HETAEELRE
RIEEERKBERREEEHOZHSI
ANFEBERERN EREETRUWERZ
E—=FN_T——F=A=t+—827
EmEE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE-T—=F=F=1+—ALFE
16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RKEBRRzERE
The Company AT
2013 2012
—F—-= —E—_fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBFTT
Unlisted investment, at cost FELETIRE IR 285,452 285,452
(a) Particulars of the subsidiaries, each of which is a (a) R-ZE—=F=ZA=+—"H KB
limited liability company, as at 31 March 2013, AR (ZEABERRAR) ZFEHT
were as follows: LN
Issued and fully
Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Principal
Company name establishment registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
BRTR
HBREER
ARARB AEMER L/ FR 3 b B BE/ERER E# ME  IEEH
Sino Harbour Property British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment
Holdings Limited (“SHPH") Us$1 holding
KBRLES 1BRIETZ EBR 100% - REER
Sino Harbour Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary - 100%  Investment
("Sino Harbour") shares of HK$1 each holding
EBERAA (EE]) BB 10,000 &R A (E - 100% REER
BT EBR
Enrich H.K. Investments Limited  Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment
HK$1 each holding
BREEREBRAA BE 100M% & R B {2 - 100% REER
BT EBR
Jiangxi Asia City Real Estate PRC US$25,000,000 - 100%  Property
Development Co., Ltd. development
("Jiangxi Asia City")
TREMAEERE i 25,000,000 7 - 100%  BiERSE
BRAR (DIFEMAL)
Fuzhou Pan Hong Kai Xuan PRC RMB280,000,000 - 100%  Property
Property Development Co., development
Ltd. (‘Fuzhou Pan Hong")
WIS e B0 E R B i AR 280,000,000 - 100% BiERSE

BERAR (TENAE])
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Particulars of the subsidiaries, each of which is a

16. RHMBAT zEE (&

limited liability company, as at 31 March 2013,

(a)

)

RZE—=F=A=+—RH B
REN(ZBBRERAR) 2FE&HT

were as follows: (continued) MR (4E)
Issued and fully
Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Principal
Company name establishment registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
BRTR
BREER

AR LR AL B BE/ ERER E# BE  IEEH

Nanchang Liyang Decoration PRC RMB500,000 - 100%  Interior design and
Limited decoration

METERBREHIRERAR TE& AR H500,0007C - 100%  AEBRAREE

Nanchang Dingxun Co. Ltd. PRC RMB66,865,000 - 55%  Property
("Nanchang Dingxun”) development

HESAEXEARAR i AR #:66,865,00070 - 55%  BHERE
(MAAESdl)

Leping City Fenghuang PRC RMB24,500,000 - 51%  Property
Jincheng Industry Co., Ltd. development
("Leping City ")

RYTEESHEXARDA HE AR #24,500,00070 - 51%  REHERE
([8£F5])

Sino Harbour Development Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100%  Investment holding
Limited HK$1 each

BEERERAA BE RERIETZ - 100% REHEK

TR

Raptobyte (Pty) Limited South Africa South African Rand 100 - 70%  Dormant
(South Africa)

CE: 100F FERI T - 0% BEX®

Sino Africa Investment And Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of = 100%  Investment holding
Development Group Ltd HK$1 each

TEREEXREEBRAR  FAE 10,000 BR1ETZ - 100%  HEER

TR
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16.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RMIBARZHER (&)

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial (b) TXEI—EHEEHAERMSE
information for Nanchang Dingxun, a subsidiary BRZHEERER - MBRARIEE
that has a non-controlling interest which is SR BERBE -
material to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position BB E
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Current RE
Assets BE 148,240 82,488
Liabilities =R (56,271) (17,879)
Total net current assets RBEEFEHE 91,969 64,609
Non-current R E
Assets BE 413 494
Liabilities afE (30,000) -
Total non-current net kR (BE)

(liabilities)/assets EEFEAE (29,587) 494
Net assets BEEFE 62,382 65,103
Accumulated non-controlling 23 3R ER

interests 2,017 793
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RMIBARZHER (&)
(b)  (continued) (b) (&)
Summarised statement of comprehensive 2H YR E
income
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Revenue & - -
Loss before income tax B FT1S R A 18 (2,721) (1,247)
Loss after tax and total BREEBER
comprehensive income 2HIKEESE (2,721) (1,247)
Loss allocated to a DR FIEERER 2 EE
non-controlling interest (1,224) (561)

Dividends paid to a non-
controlling interest

AT IR R 2R
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16.

(b) (continued)

Summarised statement of cash flows

RB AR 2R (&)

(b)

(%)
RBERBRGBE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—BLHFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR® T AREBTTT
Cash flows from operating RETHMELERESRE
activities
Cash (used in)/generated from  #R&5E8) (FAA),/
operations Fiei& (35,818) 2,719
Interest paid EAFE 36 36
Income taxes paid BFEH (1) =
Net cash (used in)/generated EETE ()
from operating activities Hrig B & F 5 (35,783) 2,755
Cash flows from investing RETEMELERESRE
activities
Purchase of property, BEWE WEREE
plants and equipment (74) (545)
Net cash used in investing KA G B T B % F B
activities (74) (545)
Cash flows from financing METEMELERESRE
activities
Proceeds from new borrowings ¥ {& B T8 58 50,000 -
Net cash generated from BE B 7T 2 FEE
financing activities 50,000 -
Net increase in cash and ReREAESEEY
cash equivalents 3N EE 14,143 2,210
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRERBEEEY
beginning of the year 2,356 146
Cash and cash equivalent FREECREELEEY
at end of year 16,499 2,356
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17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 17. REELEZER
The Group rEE

2013 2012
—Eg—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR¥ETFTT
(Restated)
(L&)
Unlisted investment, at cost FELETIRE IR 50,000 50,000
Share of post-acquisition loss SMEUREE R EE (2,553) (2,553)
47,447 47,447
Amount due from a joint venture W —FH&LhERE 126,702 47,702
174,149 95,149
As at 31 March 2013, the Group had interest in the RZE—=F=A=+—8B KA&EERT

following joint venture: T GG DERBRED:
Principal Percentage of
activities and Paid-up equity interests
Place of place of registered held by
Company name establishment operation capital the Group
rEBMERE
NCIEZE RO 3t B TEXBRERLH BRIAMER 2B
Jiangxi Ganghong PRC Property RMB100,000,000 50%

development,
PRC

PANiEp:97 S o FHERZE  $ A K #100,000,0007T 50%
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17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 17.

The aggregate amounts relating to the joint venture that
have been included in the Group's consolidated financial

REELX 2 ER (&)

BRI AR K ERE

BELEBBYH

BRZGEVBHRRZAELEZRER

statements as extracted from relating financial statements HEH T
of the joint venture are set out below:
2013 2012
—E—= —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
(Restated)
(FeE5))
Joint venture's results fortheyear HZE=A=+—HI
ended 31 March FEZEELEZEER
Income A - =
Expenses 2 - =
Loss for the year FAEE - =
Group's share of result of AN ER [ FE i — A
a joint venture for the year BEDLEFANZEEA - =
Group's accumulated share of NEBE RFT RN —ME
result of a joint venture EETEXS (2,553) (2,553)
Joint venture’s assets and liabilites A=A =+—H
as at 31 March CELECEERERE
Non-current assets EMBEE - =
Current assets MBEE 265,661 200,597
Current liabilities nBaE (170,766) (105,702)
Net assets BEFE 94,895 94,895
Group's share of net assets of REEESLE—BEEE
a joint venture ¥ CEERE 47,447 47,447
Current financial liabilities nBemaE (TeE
(excluding trade and other B 5 REMES
payables and provisions) SRIB AR B ) (170,766) (105,702)

At 31 March 2013 and 2012, neither contigent liabilities

RZE—=FR_FTE——F=ZA=+—

B ANEEYESRAEREANEE-

nor capital commitments are shared by the Group.

B —HeELEFADERR RER
EARBHREAHET2EAREE-

Amount due from a joint venture was unsecured, interest
free and not repayable within 12 months from the
reporting date.
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18.

PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT B Py
The Group rEE

2013 2012
—_F—-= —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETF T ARET T
(Restated)
(E73)
Leasehold interests in land T ERER 623,566 657,526
Development costs A 2% K AR 430,241 391,314
Finance costs capitalised BB R AN E A E 12,237 29,420
1,066,044 1,078,260

Leasehold interests in land are located in the PRC and have
lease terms expiring from 2043 to 2080 (2012: 2043 to
2080). At 31 March 2013, certain properties held under
development of approximately RMB405,691,000 (2012:
RMB88,726,000, restated) were pledged against bank
and other loans of the Group (note 25).

At 31 March 2013, properties held under development
amounted to approximately RMB654,236,000 (2012:
RMB696,551,000, restated) were not scheduled to be
sold within twelve months.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, properties held
under development with a carrying value of approximately
RMB6,973,000 were transferred to investment properties
as these properties were under operating lease
arrangements with third parties during the year to earn
rental. The fair value of these properties upon transfer to
investment properties of approximately RMB37,125,000
were determined by JLLSCAA, based on the investment
method by capitalising the net rental income derived
from the existing tenancy with due allowance for the
reversionary value of the property in March 2013. The
fair value change of approximately RMB30,152,000 was
credited to profit or loss for the year ended 31 March
2013.

THHEERSURTER BEHH-F
N=FRB2_ZNZEF LEM(ZF
——F _EN=FE_BNEF)
R-E—=F=F=+—H HARE
405,691,000 (ZE—=—F: AR®
88,726,0007T ' & &%) v B THEFRYE
BEFER WERAER ZRITELEME
K (B5E25) ©

RZE—=F=A=+—H HAEK
654,236,000 (ZE —Z—F: AR
696,551,0007T * & E 51| ) z FE R R
+_EARLEFEHE -

HE - ZT—=F=-F=1+—HIEER"
BREELNARYE,973,0007T 2 FZEh 3
ERZNEANE RRAZSUETIRE
FREFE=FHIIZZEEHE L ERERMA
G oREEBEREMEIMELTFEY
AR ¥37,125,000C AR 2 81T A
MEHET ZEBEENREBEREEBRA
BERHNZHERAFETFUERNL &
PEEHEWER T =F=A271#
FEE - AFEZIHH ARE30,152,000
THABE-_E—=F=A=+—HIF
EZEzEAN-
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19. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 19. HFEWE
The Group rEE
Properties held for sale included property interests in HEMEREETE T s WEER A
land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring from ENH_TON=FRE_FTNZFILEF
2043 to 2080 (2012: 2043 to 2080). As at 31 March M(ZE——F  —_FE=F=2_FT)N\Z
2013, the carrying value of the operating lease up-front F) RZE—=F=A=+—H Ll
payments on the leasehold interests in land amounted to ERm v EEHEBRNRERBEO R A
approximately RMB28,973,000 (2012: RMB71,461,000). R 28,973,000 (Z T ——4&: ARK
71,461,0007T) °
20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 20. EWERM
The Group rEE
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that were past I AR Bl S BE B8 L AR AR (E 2 i B FE
due but neither individually nor collectively considered to R ZBRER AT
be impaired is as follows:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR® T AREBTTT
Based on invoice date RERZEHFHE
Less than 3 months past due BH DR =18 A 12 80
3 — 6 months past due mEB=FNEA - 445
6 months — 1 year past due BEHINERZE—F - =
More than 1 year past due A —F Ak - 52
12 577

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent buyers. Based on past
experience, the Board considered that no impairment
allowance is required as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.
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21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ENFREREMERIRE
The Group The Company
AEE EDF
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —E—CF —E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTT AR®TR ARETTT
(Restated)
(&E5))
Prepayments B RIE 67,366 42,029 146 -
Other receivables H b Y A 85,460 45,387 13 298
152,826 87,416 159 298

Other receivables of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB35,600,000 (2012: RMB18,000,000)
are interest-bearing at monthly interest rate of 1% and
repayable within one year. None of the other receivables is
either past due or impaired. The other receivables related
to counterparties for which there was no recent history of

default.

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate
their fair values as these financial assets which were
measured at amortised cost, are expected to be repaid
within a short time scale, such that the time value of
money is not significant.

AEBZHEHMERIEBOARKE
35,600,000 (ZZE—Z—fF: AR
18,000,0007T) & A1% 2 PR+ B A
R —FREE - H i fE UGB K 8 HY IR
RAERE o EL b FE U3k T8 B2 3T HA 3F 4 38 4)
R ZEHFHERM-

HRZERBEERAAENSREERN
BREHAEER  HibRURENREE
BENFERE A SR EEL T
BEX

o
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22. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK 22, EHEHAERURBRERBITESR
BALANCES
The Group The Company
PN b/
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —E-C-F —E-=F T
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
i AR¥TR ARBTT ARBT R ARBT L
(Restated)
(BE7)
Cash and bank Be RIRTEHS
balances 240,917 92,763 69 935
Deposit pledged BAdiE NERRTT
against banking EEmHKE
facilities granted 75
to the mortgagees (a) 31,724 24,403 - -
Deposit pledged for ~ BEME KT
other loans IR 2 FR (b) 230,000 = - =
502,641 117,166 69 935
Less: Deposits with 5 : REIEE A
original =EAKE
maturity over T1EEH
three months (31,724) (24,403) - -
Less: Non-current R IEREE R
pledged TR
deposits (230,000) - - -
Cash and cash REAGZERE
equivalents for RERZEER
the purpose of BEZEEY
the consolidated
statement of
cash flows 240,917 92,763 69 935
Notes: BSE -
(a) The deposits were pledged to certain banks as security (a) BB RSV FrER A - T RE I T

in the PRC as detailed in note 31. These banks provided
mortgage loans to purchasers for acquisition of
properties from the Group. The pledge will last for the
period from the date of draw-down of mortgage loans to
the date when the certificates for housing ownership are
granted to the property purchasers. Such charges will be
released upon the certificates are granted to the property
purchasers.
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22.

23.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK 22.
BALANCES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) The bank deposits of approximately RMB230,000,000
with interest rate of 4.675% was pledged against other
loans due to be settled over twelve months after the
reporting period (note 25) as at 31 March 2013.

At 31 March 2013, approximately RMB502,556,000
(2012: RMB104,169,000, restated) were cash deposited
with banks or other financial institutions in the PRC.
These balances were denominated in RMB. RMB is not
freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under the PRC
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for foreign currencies through banks in the PRC that are
authorised to conduct foreign exchange businesses.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS, RECEIPTS IN 23.
ADVANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES

EERAERUARRERBITER
(%)

BiieE: ()

(b) RZZE—=ZF=ZA=Z+—8B &7
KL 675%T B ZRITHEROARYE
230,000,0007T &, Bt H fth & 51 if 1E H 3K
B ZEERBERREBET_MEARN
B HRE S (PMIEE25) »

R-ZEBE—=F=A=+—8 BT
RIRITREMESBEB IR STROAEA
R #502,556,000c (ZE—Z—F: AR
104,169,0007T ' £ &EFI) -2 ZHEHIAA
REDE - ARBARA]EH LB EINE -
RIE (B2 SN B I 6 1) K 45 B - 65 1B
RAEEERTE) AEBEBEEBET
BlERESEINEXB ZRITHARE L
Ha B INEE o

FEAS BRK - FERTFUH - AWRRIE R H At
&1+ 7K/

The Group The Company
r5E AN
2013 2012 2013 2012
== —E—F —Eg—= T
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
gz AR®TR ARETT AR®TR ARETTT
(Restated)
(&&E7)
Accounts payable  FEfER (@) 29,309 17,756 - -
Accruals, receipts in B8 - B IE
advance and REMESTE
other payables
Receipts in advance ~ TBUFIA 255,705 332,253 = =
Accruals and other  [EFFHIBREAM
payables FEfTFRIE (b) 174,867 146,501 64 64
430,572 478,754 64 64
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23.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS, RECEIPTS IN
ADVANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The ageing analysis of accounts payable, based on

23.

FEASRRAK - FERTFUH - AWRIR R H A
P RRE (&)

GEE

(@) FENBERIREZBHAE ZREDN

invoice date, is as follows: NS
2013 2012
—2-=F —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR AREET T
(Restated)
(& E5))
Less than 3 months LR =1EA 25,405 11,035
3 - 6 months =EXE@A 135 1,810
6 months — 1 year NEAE— 2,042 3,558
More than 1 year —FUE 1,727 1,353
29,309 17,756

Accrued construction cost and other project-related
expenses were included in accruals and other payables
amounted to approximately RMB151,343,000 as at 31
March 2013 (2012: RMB56,570,000, restated). The
amount was accrued based on the terms of the relevant
agreements and project progress and was not due for
payment as at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2013, other payables included
an amount of approximately RMB490,000 (2012:
RMB490,000), which was payable to Jiangxi Dongjing
Property Development Limited (;I 785 5 & i & 7
ZEH R A A]) which held 49% equity interest in the
Group's subsidiary, Leping Feng Huang. In addition,
other payables included an amount of approximately
RMB3,862,000 (2012: RMB1,162,000), which was
payable to Shanghai Dingxun Enterprise (Group) Limited
(EBRAEHX(KE)BR2AA) which held 45%
equity interest in the Group's subsidiary, Nanchang
Dingxun. These payable balances were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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5T AR IE R H A JE T 3RIE 2 FERT RS
AREMEERBRAINAARE
151,343,000 (ZBE——F: AR
56,570,0007T * &£ &EFI|) - ZEHRIBRE
TR 2 KR R IA B B E 25 AR IR
EHR M AREEA L o

R=ZB—=F=A=+—8 HtEH
FIBBIE .@2%)\%’#154900007c(_7
— =% : AR%490,0007T) 5K 1B
TNFIARSEMERESRAR
ZARFEASEKNBARLFREE
A49% AR o Lt A - E fth B A5 SR IE B3R 4D
A ANR 3,862,000 (ZE—=F: A
R%1,162,0007C) KRB BN T k£
BRAEXE (SE)ERAA  ZARE
BAREENE R RS FRA5%MHE -
ZEERNFESKBLERR 22 RAE
BRERERE -
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES 24, FEW ESHEBATRE
The Company AT
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and FEUFENFUEAEET 2B RARE
repayable on demand. KIEHE -
25. BANK AND OTHER LOANS 25. HRITRHMER
The Group N EE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
M aE AREF T ARET T
(Restated)
(&E5)
Bank loans — secured RITER—BEH (a) 145,000 80,000
Other financial institution Hib S pgiEER
loans — secured —FE# (b) 388,500 =
Total borrowings BEEE 533,500 80,000
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25.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

The analysis of the carrying amount of the bank and other
loans is as follows:

25. RMITREMER(EF)

RITREMERZEEESTOT

Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=5F —ET——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARBT ARBFIT
(Restated)
(&=75)
Current T E
Portion of bank and other AR —F NI EEES
financial institution loans HIESJZL@\}&ZfETT&
due for repayment within H & mE s xHBMm
one year or on demand 99,000 -
Non-current ERE
Portion of bank and other AR—FRIIBEEREY
financial institution loans RIT R H M S Bl
due for repayment after M EREHHD
one year 434,500 80,000
Total borrowings BEAE 533,500 80,000
Notes: Bt 5

(a)

At 31 March 2013, the bank loans were denominated in
RMB amounted to RMB145,000,000, repayable in full on
or before December 2014 and bore interest at floating
rates ranging from 6.15% to 7.995% per annum. The
bank loans were secured by the pledge of the Group’s
properties held under development of approximately
RMB212,833,000 (2012: RMB88,726,000, restated)
(note 18). Among these bank loans, an amount of
RMB20,000,000 (2012: Nil) was secured by personal
guarantee by Mr. Wong Lam Ping, director of Pan Hong
Property.
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25. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued) 25. RIOTREMER (&)

Notes: (continued) Misr: (&)

(b) Other loans were denominated in RMB, have a term (b) HbWEFRUAREFE BT —=
of 3 years commencing December 2012 and bore FT_ARBE=%F" T;zlmfﬁﬂ—?—
interest at fixed rates ranging from 6.15% to 7.38% NF6.15%E7.38%T B -R_T—=
per annum. The other loans were secured by (i) the FZA=1+—H EMERTBAOARE
Group's investment properties and properties held under B RAMERAEPWENARY
development of approximately RMB229,983,000 and 229,983,0007T & (i)A A REFHE 2 B
(ii) bank deposits denominated in RMB amounted to TTT?? %49 A R #230,000,0007T (B &
approximately RMB230,000,000 (note 22(b)) as at 31 b)) VEH 3 o
March 2013.

26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 26, ELBEEE(BE)
The Group NEH
At 31 March 2013, deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RZE—=F=A=+—H EEHEZ

are provided at the tax rate 25% (2012: 25%). The B/ (BE)UMRELS% (ZFT— - 4F:

movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising from
temporary differences are as follows:

25% )t RRBHE - HEREREL ZEIL
BRBEE/ (BBE)Z2E3HMT:

Deferred tax

Deferred tax
liabilities in

assets in  respect of fair
respect value change
of provision  of investment
for LAT properties Total
B+ b M E B BB
BEERz LAVEZDEE
ELEHEEE ZELEHEAR #at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETFTT AR¥ETTT ARETFTT
At 1 April 2011 RZTE——FHA— EI 6,050 (12,002) (5,952)
Deferred tax ﬁ/‘ mARET A (0B
credit/(debited) to »Lmlﬁ
the profit or loss 8,945 (1,587) 7,358
At 31 March 2012 and R-ZB——F
1 April 2012 *ﬂ +—AxK
T -——FNHH— El 14,995 (13,589) 1,406
Deferred tax B’\TE SERET A (40BR
credit/(debited) to ZIEFERIE
the profit or loss 4,711 (8,095) (3,384)
At 31 March 2013 R=Z—Z=%F
=A=+—H 19,706 (21,684) (1,978)
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26.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
(continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. The
Group has no material unrecognised tax losses to carry
forward against future taxable income at 31 March 2013
(2012: Nil).

Withholding rate of 10% is imposed on dividends
distributed to foreign investors. As at 31 March 2013,
deferred tax liabilities amounted to approximately
RMB29,794,000 (2012: RMB26,677,000) in respect
of aggregate amount of temporary difference
of approximately RMB297,938,000 (2012:
RMB266,767,000) associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries have not been recognised. No deferred
tax liabilities have been recognised in respect of these
differences because the Group is in a position to control
the dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is
probable that such differences will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.
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EERBAEE, (BE) (£)

BEEHBEERMEE 2 HEEBIE T U
R MELA R RE B B R R FE SR TR IR
ZEBRBNZEAR R-_T—=F=A4
=+ —B AEBEWES A RERTIEES
BRFLEERERRERHEA(ZE
— )

DR TINEIREE 2R ETHIZTAN =
10%BRBEF - R E—=F=A=+—
B BB ARRD KM BEEERNE
BB EHARK297,938,000T (= F
— —4F: AR ¥266,767,0007T) 2 ELER
HEEHARK29,794,000 (ZE—=
F: ANR#26,677,00070) iR F LATER °
HRAEBEREFZERB AR ZKRE
B BEBERKE TSR] RS RE
O WU ERZEERRERELEHERE-
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27.

SHARE CAPITAL 27. RB=®
2013 2012
—E-=F —E--F
Number of Number of
shares RMB’000 shares RMB'000
RH#E AR®TR BiHEE AREFTT
Authorised: BE:
Ordinary shares of BREE.0IBTZ
HK$0.01 each TE R
At 1 April KIEA—H 4,500,000,000 37,401 9,000,000 79
Increase of share capital BRI A1 (KizE(b))
(note (b)) - - 4,491,000,000 37,322
At 31 March R=R=+—H 4,500,000,000 37,401 4,500,000,000 37,401

Issued and fully paid: BETRER:

Ordinary shares of BREE0.01ETL

HK$0.01 each gl
At 1 April RIEA—H 1,200,000,000 9,931 1 -
Reorganisation and loan ~ E# & &

capitalisation (note () Bk (MiE(0) - - 4,999,999 41
Capitalisation issue BRI ET (MEEd)

(note (d)) - - 895,000,000 7,407
Issuance of ordinary pEmETTER

shares in connection (PitzE(e))

with listing (note (e)) - - 300,000,000 2,483
At 31 March R=R=+—H 1,200,000,000 9,931 1,200,000,000 9,931
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27.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Company was incorporated on 5 January 2011
with authorised share capital of HK$90,000 divided
into 9,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. One share
was allotted and issued to the sole shareholder of the
Company, Pan Hong Property, nil paid on 19 January
2011.

Pursuant to written resolutions passed by Pan
Hong Property on 4 July 2011, the authorised share
capital of the Company increased from HK$90,000
to HK$45,000,000 by the creation of an additional
4,491,000,000 shares, such new shares to rank pari
passu with the then existing shares in all respects.

Pursuant to written resolutions passed by Pan Hong
Property on 4 July 2011, in consideration for (i) Pan
Hong Property transferring the entire issued share
capital of SHPH; and (ii) the wholly-owned subsidiary
of Pan Hong Property, Pan Hong Investment Limited
("Pan Hong Investment”), assigning the outstanding
loan due from the Company wholly-owned subsidiary,
Sino Harbour, to Pan Hong Investment in the aggregate
amount of approximately HK$313,928,090 to the
Company, 4,999,999 shares were allotted and issued
by the Company to Pan Hong Property, all credited as
fully paid. In addition, the one nil-paid share held by
Pan Hong Property was credited as fully paid. Amount
of share capital and share premium of approximately
RMB285,411,000 respectively.

Pursuant to written resolutions passed by Pan Hong
Property on 4 July 2011, 895,000,000 shares of the
Company were allotted and issued, credited as fully
paid at par value of HK$0.01 each to Pan Hong Property
by capitalisation of approximately HK$8,950,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB7,407,000) from
the share premium account. Such allotment and
capitalisation was conditional on the share premium
account being credited as a result of the new shares
issued in connection with the Listing.

On 22 July 2011, 300,000,000 shares (at par value of
HK$0.01 each) of the Company were allotted and issued
at the price of HK$1.1 per share in connection with the
initial public offering of the Company.

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited 275 f5 i 2 & & 5 R A A
Annual Report 2012/2013 £ $

27.

B (&)

f i

(a)

KAR DR ZZT——F—ARAAGFEM
M AT R A90,0008 7L 2 A
9,000,000 F R EE0.018 70,2 B °
—RARBBRBHERA =T ——F— A
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28.

RESERVES

The Group

Details of the movements on the Group's reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The nature and purpose of the reserves are as follows:

()

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group
represents the premium arising from the issue of
shares of the Company at premium.

Statutory reserves

According to the relevant PRC laws, the
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least 10%
of its net profit after tax, as determined under the
PRC accounting regulation, to a statutory reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
subsidiaries’ registered capital. The transfer of this
reserve must be made before the distribution of
dividend to the subsidiaries’ equity owners. The
statutory reserve is non-distributable other than
upon the liquidation of the subsidiaries.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the registered capital of
Jiangxi Asia City, the additional registered capital
of Fuzhou Pan Hong and the registered capital
of Jiangxi Ganghong held by the Group and the
nominal value of the share capital of SHPH.

28. f#fE
KEE

AEBEZFBEIFBIANGAERED
KoBHEERBOMT

i EKHHE

AR 2 B i B Rk I8 AN A Rl
BRITRODMAEEZRE-

(i) EERE

RIBABTEAR WEBARZAR
REFESHERMETE 2R
RAMED10%BEEETERHRE
EERBERERNBAREME
R Z50% ° =& R IHEE AR DK
BB TH B AR SRS AZAE
1T EERB IR - KB R
BRI BRI o

(i) BEAXRE

BEAREBREASERFF 2 IATM
W2 S E A NGRS 2 Bt
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WE-T-=F=A=1—AILFE
28. RESERVES (continued) 28. f##E (£&)
The Company AT

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited 75 f5 i 2 & & 5 R A 7]

Retained profits/

Share (Accumulated Proposed final
premium* loss)* dividend Total
BRER/
R EE (REtBB) *  RERRERE Chl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBTT
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FMA—A - (588) - (588)
Arising from Reorganisation FHEMA R EHE R

and loan capitalisation B4 (WE27(0)

(note 27(c)) 285,411 - - 285,411
Capitalisation issue BAET

(note 27(d)) (HsE27(d)) (7,407) - - (7,407)
Issuance of ordinary shares 3L EMETE R

in connection with listing (Ki5E27(e))

(note 27(e)) 259,990 - - 259,990
Transactions with owners BREALRS 537,994 - = 537,994
Profit for the year and total ~ F R F R FREE

comprehensive income W= BE

for the year - 30,586 - 30,586
Proposed final dividend BIRAR AR S

(note 11) (PEE11) - (29,264) 29,264 -
At 31 March 2012 and Eﬁfg:ii

1 April 2012 =ZA=T-HR

“E-_FNA—H 537,994 734 29,264 567,992
Profit for the year and total ~ ERHHM R ER2E

comprehensive income Wiz

for the year - 38,475 - 38,475
Dividend paid ERERE - - (29,264) (29,264)
Proposed final dividend BIRAR RS

(note 11) (MEE11) - (38,741) 38,741 -
At 31 March 2013 R-B-Z=%

=ZA=t+-A 537,994 468 38,741 577,203

G The aggregate amount of these balances of 4 ZERBE SRS H ARMES38,462,000

RMB538,462,000 (2012: RMB538,728,000) in surplus is T(ZZF—=—%F: AR#¥538,728,000
included as reserves in statement of financial position. T EFAMBHRAR ZHEEA -

Annual Report 2012/2013 4 $i
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29.

30.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. EBEXEE
The Group rEE
2013 2012
—F—-= —E——fF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
(Restated)
(FeE5))
Contracted but not provided forin BT T NEREE
respect of
— properties held under development of —ZARN£[E ~ 53
the Group LES 182,274 168,699
— acquisition of land use rights of land ~ — &8 +th 2 £ 3
15 FR 481,000 -

The Company did not have any commitments as at 31
March 2013 and 2012.

ARBR - E—=Z=FEN_T——-F=A
=+ —HWETEE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 30. KREHERIE
The Group rEE
(@)  The Group had future aggregate minimum lease (@) ASEREMERBEATRELE
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases in MEMRARRWE 2 EHE 2%
respect of its properties as follows: UM
2013 2012
—g—=fF —ET—_fF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T ARMT T
Not later than one year —F N 1,611 1,567
Later than one year and —F LA B EBRRF
not later than five years 7,893 7,313
Later than five years HEFMNE 8,225 10,416
17,729 19,296

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited /&% E i E £ EHR A A

Annual Report 2012/2013 48 #i



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B R R M A

42 A

=]

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-T—=F=F=1+—AILFE

136

30.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued) — 30. R&ERERIE (&)

The Group (continued) KEE (&)

(@)  (continued) (a) (%)

The Group leases out its investment properties REEBHBEREME SHBE
which run for initial periods of ten to sixteen years, TE+RF BREERB BN
without option to renew the lease terms at the BEREN HEHEIRES-
respective expiry dates. None of the leases includes

contingent rentals.

The Company does not have any operating lease RARNERBE A HECEHE
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases. W E R & E R -

(b)  The Group had future aggregate minimum lease (b) AEERMERBETUHBELCEHR
payments under non-cancellable operating leases EMRAREINzHERERTE
in respect of properties as follows: mr

2013 2012

—E-=F —E——F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTTT

Not later than one year —F N 151 264
Later than one year and —FAFETBBRF

not later than five years 16 105

167 369

The Group leases properties under operating
lease arrangements which run for initial period of
one to three years, with an option to renew the
lease terms at the expiry date. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

The Company does not have any operating lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases.

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited 75 f5 i 2 & & 5 R A 7]
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31.

32.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

The Group

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for
certain purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of repayments.
As at 31 March 2013, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately RMB309,153,000 (2012:
RMB312,013,000). Such guarantees will be terminated
upon earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership
certificate which will generally be available within one
or two years after the purchasers take possession of the
relevant properties; or (ii) the satisfaction of mortgaged
loans by the purchasers of properties.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,

31. HMKER

EE

il

\

REBEAETER ZMEENM LIRS
B UHBRZSERETREER
R-ZE—=F=A=+—HB EBHZ#
REEA) B AR #E309,153,000 (—F——
F£: AR#312,013,0007T) ° Z HERE
RATERERBERIE: ()VEHEHER
BEF(—BRREREBEBEMEEEZ —X
MERRME) B (N EEREBBRIEE

R o

i3

32. BAEIZRS

(@) MREAFYBHRREMGITDARE
R REEHI REEDETIAT

the Group had the following material related party BERBAEFIRS:
transactions:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTIT
Rent paid to a fellow subsidiary BNRZEMNB AR ZHE 253 234
Car park rental paid to anon-  Eff3EMITESRE 2
executive director FHEFHASHAY 23 =

Rent paid to Pan Hong Investment, a fellow
subsidiary of the Group, for rental of an unit
of office premises which is held by Pan Hong
Investment, based on the terms agreed and signed
on a tenancy agreement. Car park rent paid to
Ms. Chan Heung Ling, a non-executive director
of the Company, for rental of a car park based
on the terms agreed and signed on a tenancy
agreement. As the annual amount of the rents
payables under the tenancy agreements are less
than HK$1,000,000, the continuing connected
transaction contemplated thereunder will qualify
as de minimum transaction under Rule 14A.33(3)
of the Listing Rules, that is exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

RAEERZWEB R GNBIRERN
BEZHAEMESEuz2BEM
T EMABKREZHS IREL
WIE ZGFGEIT W RIEE E s
MoBRNARRENITESHR WL
wEZIEESAETIEE HE KR
HEFBEMTHEERERHZ AR
BEHERZEN CFEHE T
>121,000,00058 7T - BUEETT 255
BEREIXSHEARERIBE ETAR
F14A33)E R E AXIEE B KE
R5 BEAXZIHPETHRR  FE
B ANAERERBIREHEZ
T e
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HE-ZT—=-F=-A=1+—HULEHFE
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3. BEFXRB (#E)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) FEEXIEEBEABHTMH

of the Group
Remuneration for key management personnel REEFEEEASZHM (B
of the Group, including amounts paid to the ENARRERZRE THESHME
Company's directors and certain of the highest B2 &M RERMEE13 -
paid employees, are disclosed in note 13.

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. UHEREEBBERBE

AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose the Group to a variety of
financial risks which comprise market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group currently does not have
any written risk management policies and guidelines.
However, the board of directors meets periodically and
cooperates closely with key management to analyse and
formulate strategies to manage and monitor financial
risks.

The Group is not engaged in trading of financial assets for
speculative purposes. The most significant financial risks
to which the Group is exposed to be described below.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rate. The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk mainly
arises from deposits at banks, other receivables
and bank and other loans which bore interests
at fixed and floating interest rates. Bank and
other loans arranged at variable rates and fixed
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The interest rate and repayment terms of the
borrowing outstanding at the end of the reporting
period are disclosed in note 25.

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited 75 f5 i 2 & & 5 R A 7]
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s bank balances also expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate on the bank
balances. The directors consider the Group's
exposure of the bank deposits is not significant as
interest-bearing deposits are within short maturity
periods in general.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group. The Group's exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from granting credit to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations. The Group is also
exposed to credit risk arising from the provision of
financial guarantees and the amounts of which are
disclosed in note 31.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of
customers and other counterparties, identified
either individually or by group, and incorporates
this information into its credit risk controls. The
Group's policy is to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties.

33. UHREBREZEBEEREE (&)

(@) F=EmEk (&)

REE 2 RITRERITRRITER 2
BT 5 FE KB < A5 B E
REREMERER BN EFR
—REMHAIEY REERA/A
SEZETERRARTBEX -

ZRER B B Al I ) KR BUR - R
m-EEEeERMNERR I
REFEHZEHHPERZFXE,

B -

(b) FERR

EERRESRTAZHTFTIIREE
RESBRTAZGRBETHERE
KGR BE R 5 B 1R 2 R o
AEEMESZEERREIERE
REBEXRBBETRATFRELE
E-AKETEmEKBERHEYBEIE
RFEEZEERR SRFER
PEEE31 ©

AEEEEERERNRARER
EEREMHF T Z2HRRER AL
HAEBERNFAREERRIES -
AEBZERRBELAEECHRI
ZEHFIRS -
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33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s management considers that all the
above financial assets that are not impaired for
at the end of reporting period are of good credit
quality, including those that are past due.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.

In respect of account and other receivables, the
Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk
exposure to any single counterparty or any group
of counterparties having similar characteristics.
The credit risk for cash at bank is considered
negligible, since the counterparties are reputable
banks with high quality external credit ratings.

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out
in RMB which is the functional currency of the
Company and most of the operating subsidiaries.
Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from
certain of the Group’s cash and bank balances
which are denominated in HK$. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge
its foreign currency risk. The Group reviews its
foreign currency exposures regularly and considers
no significant exposure on its foreign exchange
risk.

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited 75 f5 i 2 & & 5 R A 7]
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The
Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of
settlement of financial liabilities, including trade
and other payables and bank and other loans, and
its financial obligations, and also in respect of its
cash flow management.

The cash management of all operating entities is
centralised, including the raising of funds to cover
expected cash demands. The Group's policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
terms.

The table below analyses the Group's financial
liabilities based on the remaining contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

33. UHREBREZEBEEREE (&)

(d RBHESER

MEBE TR RIEANEE K REETT
HBERURNRESHEMBEREE
THEBEZERABBEZETRR-
AEERENEREE (BEEN
AR B E At FE AN SRR SR TT R Eo At
) AREITREMBEME AR
HRSRETEMEHRDETRA

B o

EREERZASHERER
HhBRESES UENERHR
EREKR-AEEZBRBTEHEE
BERBEHREE S FHR - AR
HaeRnteReWeBhBREES
BMEBRHTOAERE Lt
NEEHERERAZRDESR
Sk o

TRERTENZHESNAKH
ZEBMBE-RKPREZEES
ERIARREARESRE -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)  Liquidity risk (continued)

33.

BEEBEEREREER (&)

(d RBEZRRE (&)

The Group rE
Total Total
On demand or More than undiscounted carrying
within one year one year amount amount
R-—FR —E)E AEREH AR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At31March2013 R=-Z-=F
=ZA=t+-A
Accounts payable  JE{THR X 29,309 - 29,309 29,309
Other payables and ~ E iR FRIE K
accruals et FE 178,542 - 178,542 178,542
Bank and BIREMER
other loans 127,176 476,735 603,911 533,500
335,027 476,735 811,762 741,351
Financial quarantee B {EH 2 BI B HE(R :
issued:
Maximum amount ~ HREEREHE
guaranteed 309,153 - 309,153 -
At31March2012 R=B-=F
(as restated) =A=+-H
(RE5)
Accounts payable  JE{TER3X 17,756 = 17,756 17,756
Other payables and ~ E ft1 4 5078 &
accruals JEETTRIE 56,571 4,076 60,647 60,647
Bank and other loans $17 R B EH 4,920 84,347 89,267 80,000
79,247 88,423 167,670 158,403
Financial quarantee B {EH 2 BI B HE(R :
issued:
Maximum amount = ERE 5
guaranteed 312,013 - 312,013 -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The management has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
banking facilities, and by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value

The fair value of the Group's current financial
assets and liabilities are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of immediate
or short term maturity of these financial
instruments. The fair value of non-current financial
assets and liabilities is not disclosed because the
carrying values are not materially different from
the fair values at the reporting date.

33. UHREBREZEBEEREE (&)

(d RBESRRE (&)

EEEERVBEEZRPDESR
RERER NEEAKEEH-
PR ERHES AR RBER
ZEBBR - AKEBBERRR
- RITEERERRITEER
B ERFEEEERANERRSR
E-UYEkHEREERBEIHB
MEBRRDE SRR -

(e) AY¥E

HRASEZRBHEREERAE
RN EHANEE AtzEe
MTAZAVERERAETES
RER - AR REEER RS B H
ZRFELEEKRNZR  HIALKRF
BRDERMEERBBZIAYF
Ao
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33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33.

AND POLICIES (continued)

()

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by (f)

category

The categories of financial assets and liabilities
included in the consolidated statements of

BEEBEEREREER (&)

BERB S 2EMEERAEEE

AT eEEGEEMBIRRRZE
MEENBEENAREAAZ

financial position and the headings in which they HH:
are included are as follows:
The Group The Company
bS] b
2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-Z=F 3 “E-Z=F —T-CF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT AR®TT ARBTT
(Restated)
(FE5)
Financial assets CREE
Loans and receivables B U fE Y TR A
Accounts receivable JEURBE R 12 577 = =
Other receivables H ot e FRIR 85,460 45,387 159 298
Amount due from JE Y — ]
ajoint venture BEMEFE 126,702 47,702 - =
Amounts due from JE e B
subsidiaries ARRIE - - 309,601 299,385
Pledged deposits BEAER 261,724 24,403 - =
Cash and bank Be kBT
balances 240,917 92,763 69 935
714,815 210,832 309,829 300,618
Financial liabilities £ ®AE
At amortised cost biig $i=ID@N
Accounts payable JET 8RR 29,309 17,756 = =
Other payables and Hit BN HIER
accruals JEEtFIE 178,542 60,647 64 64
Amounts due to ERHEAR
subsidiaries B - - 8,083 8,083
Bank and other BITREMER
loans 533,500 80,000 - -
741,351 158,403 8,147 8,147
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34,

35.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING
PERIOD

On 2 April 2013, the Group's indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, Sino Harbour, entered into a facility agreement
(the "Facility Agreement”) with a bank relating to secured
term loan facilities (the “Facilities”) of an aggregate
amount of HK$315 million for a term of up to 3 years
from the date of drawdown, 24 April 2013. The Group
obtained the Facilities to finance a land acquisition
as result of the Group and the Bureau of Land and
Resources of Hangzhou having entered into a land grant
contract dated 28 March 2013 for the acquisition of the
land use rights of the land in Hangzhou, the PRC, at a
consideration of RMB506 million, of which approximately
RMB253 million shall be due on 27 April 2013.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(i) To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it continues to provide
returns and benefits for stakeholders;

(ii) To support the Group's stability and growth; and

(iii)  To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening
the Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities. The Group currently
does not adopt any formal dividend policy.

34.

35.

BEMARSEER

R-E—=%FWA-B AEBEE
FEWBRAREEHE —METHESE
£315,000,000/% T 2 K 4# F B3 & @k
E(lzmEilumEm=s ([REWH
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35. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued) 35.

Management regards total equity as capital. The
amount of capital as at 31 March 2013 amounted
to approximately RMB1,191,064,000 (2012:
RMB1,096,404,000), which the management considers
as optimal having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the projected strategic investment
opportunities. The net debts-to-equity ratio at 31 March
2013 and 2012 were as follows:

ExEE (&)

EEERERAERRER N —=
FZA=+—"H BEX2BHOAEARKE
1,191,064,000c (ZE—Z—F: ARM
1,096,404,0007T) - E R EKE BB E
AAYX KB RBEEREHRSE  REZ
ZLHBRE-R_E—=FK_F
F=ZA=1+— ElZfﬁ%ﬂEﬂ%\tth
T

2013 2012

—E—=F —ET-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREBTT AR¥ET T

(Restated)

(gE7))

Accounts payable FETER X 29,309 17,756
Accruals, receipts in advance and FEETFRIE - TEURIE &

other payables H b IR 430,572 478,754

Bank and other loans R1T7 R H A B K 533,500 80,000

993,381 576,510

Less: Cash and bank balances W IRE MIRTT AR (240,917) (92,763)

Pledged deposits B ER (261,724) (24,403)

Net debts B1%FE 490,740 459,344

Equity 12 1,191,064 1,096,404

Net debts to equity ratio B R EE R X 41% 42%
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Financial Summary

MR

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEXE
Year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+-HL%E
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“ERENF “E-FF —F—F —F-F —B-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETTL AREFT ARBT R
Revenue WA 24121 196,920 340,198 515,181 559,918
(Loss)/profit before income tax BErERE (5E),/
2 7l (2,389) 109,834 175,395 200,694 198,180
Income tax expense FrERx (9,576) (35,582) (51,694) (99,943) (72,960)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(BE)/BH (11,965) 74,252 123,701 100,751 125,220
Attributable to: T ALRER:
Owners of the Company RARERA (11,891) 74,324 123,911 101,316 126,444
Non-controlling interests FERER (74) (72) (210) (565) (1,224)
(11,965) 74,252 123,701 100,751 125,220
(Losses)/earnings per share gk (FR) /BH
Basic AR RMB(1.32) cents RMB8.26 cents  RMB13.77 cents RMB9.14 cents  RMB10.54 cents

ARE(1.325

ARH8265  AR¥13.775 AR#9145  AR¥1054%

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

ReEE -RERAE

As at 31 March

R=A=t+-H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
ZTTNE “ZT-ZF —Z——F —Z--F —E-=F§
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET
(Restated)
(mE3)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE 92,138 154,313 201,614 172,564 518,545
Current assets MBEE 741,868 1,535,790 1,379,918 1,621,887 1,802,687
Total assets HEE 834,006 1,690,103 1,581,532 1,794,451 2,321,232
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ExREE
Total equity BERas 370,313 616,493 735,524 1,096,404 1,191,064
Non-current liabilities ErBaE = = 5,952 80,000 436,478
Current liabilities mBEE 463,693 1,073,610 840,056 618,047 693,690
Total liabilities BwafE 463,693 1,073,610 846,008 698,047 1,130,168
Total equity and liabilities EXRaEEE 834,006 1,690,103 1,581,532 1,794,451 2,321,232
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Site Area Approximate
in respect Planned/ Effective  Percentage
of entire  Actual Gross Group Sold and Expected
Location Type project Floor Area  Tenure Interest Delivered Completion Date
EER
EEEEN RE/ER SEEER AR
B 5l I EE BEEE FH i Btk RETAAH
(sq. m.) (sq. m.)
(FRK)  (Fik)
COMPLETED PROPERTIES
BRINE
Nanchang Honggu No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, R C 80,521 R: 135,642 R: Expiring on 100% R: 100% Completed
Kaixuan Phase 1 Honggu Tan Central District, C: 18,554 16 September 2073 C:91%
Nanchang City, C: Expiring on
Jiangxi Province, the PRC 16 September 2043
FEAAIIE—H REIEEEED R:RZBL=H B%T
AREN LR AATRBER
FIAKE5685 CRZIEM=%F
AATRBER
Nanchang Honggu No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, R C 80,521 R: 116,214 R: Expiring on 100% R:97% Completed
Kaixuan Phase 2* Honggu Tan Central District, C: 34,429 16 September 2073 C: 68%
Nanchang City, C: Expiring on
Jiangxi Province, the PRC 16 September 2043
HEAANE-S HEIAEHED R:RZBL=%F B%T
AAERLE AATRBER
FAKE5685 CRZIEm=%
NATRAER
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting  No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, R, C 190,753 R: 89,115  R: Expiring on 100% R: 84% Completed
Yuan Phase 1 Fuzhou City, Jiangxi Province, C: 4,664 31 January 2080 C:8%
the PRC C: Expiring on
31 January 2050
ENERER -3 HEIIAHE M T RVZZNTE B%T
BERIET66%: —R=t-HE®
C:R-ZRTE
—A=+—-HER®
Yichun Royal Lake No. 299, Yiyang Avenue, R, C 607,084 R: 80,290  R: Expiring on 100% R:53% Completed
City Phase 1 Yuanzhou District, Yichun C:12,381 29 March 2077 C-
City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC C: Expiring on
29 March 2047
EEDRE -5 HEIIREEAT RIRZBLLHF B%T
RMNBEBAE2995 =RA=thAER
CRZZN+E
ZAZthBER
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Property Portfolio
MEHRE

Site Area Approximate
in respect Planned/ Effective  Percentage
of entire  Actual Gross Group Sold and Expected
Location Type project Floor Area  Tenure Interest Delivered Completion Date
EER
EEEEN RE/ER SEEER AR
B 85 R BEEE FH i Atk RETAAH
(sq. m.) (sq. m.)
(F5K)  (FhK)
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
EEES
Nanchang Honggu No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C 80,521 31,852 Expiring on 100% N/A Q2CY2013
Kaixuan Phase 2 Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
- Sino Harbour Nanchang City,
Kaixuan Center” Jiangxi Province, the PRC
HEAAIIE_H REIEEHED RZBM=% TER ZT-=%
—ERHE 0L IREY il AATRBER E-EERT
ALBKIB15685%
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, R, C 190,753 R:79,216  R: Expiring on 100% N/A Q4CY2013
Yuan Phase 2 Fuzhou City, Jiangxi Province, C:2,399 31 January 2080
the PRC C: Expiring on
31 January 2050
mMNERER 8 HEIIRAEMT R:RZZNZF S
©ERIET66%: —A=t-BER FOEERT
C:RZZRZ%E
—R=+—HER
Nanchang Sino Harbour  No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West R, C 719,548 R: 137,668  R: Expiring on 55% N/A Q1CY2014
Island Villa (formerly Road, Nanchang Economic C: 6,464 18 May 2072
known as “Nanchang  and Technology Development C: Expiring on
Dingxun Project”) Zone, Nanchang City, 18 May 2052
Phase 1 Jiangxi Province, the PRC
HEEEMRE (A PEIAEHEETESE R:WZZLZF i —
(mERAER]) RERMEEBEERA LATNRER F-FERT
—H 778885% CR-ZR-%F
RATNBER
Yichun Royal Lake City ~ No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, R 607,804 105,000  R: Expiring on 100% N/A~ Q1CY2015
Phase 2 Yuanzhou District, 29 March 2077
Yichun City, C: Expiring on
Jiangxi Province, the PRC 29 March 2047
HERE =5 HEIREEETRME REWZTH+E TER  ZT-1%
EFRE299%; ZR-ThARER F-FERT
CRIZAESF
ZAZtNBER
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Property Portfolio
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Site Area Approximate
in respect Planned/ Effective  Percentage
of entire  Actual Gross Group Sold and Expected
Location Type project Floor Area  Tenure Interest Delivered Completion Date
EER
EEEEN RE/ER SEEER AR
B 85 R BEEE FH i Btk RETAAH
(sq. m.) (sq. m.)
(F5%)  (F5K)
FUTURE PROJECTS
AREE
Nanchang Sino Harbour  No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West R C 719,548 860,656 R: Expiring on 55% N/A Phase 2:
Island Villa (formerly Road, Nanchang Economic 18 May 2072 Q1CY2015
known as “Nanchang  and Technology Development C: Expiring on Phase 3:
Dingxun Project”) Zone, Nanchang City, 18 May 2052 Q1CY2016
Phase 2 -5 Jiangxi Province, the PRC Phase 4:
Q1CY2017
Phase 5:
Q1CY2018
HEEAME (I TEIREEED RIMZE+=F TER  ZH:
[EfAEA]) BERERTMAER RATNABER ZE-nf
—E0H BRI F558885% C:R-BR-% E-EERT
AATNRER =5
“E-RF
F-FRRT
ma:
It Sl 2
E-FERT
n:
—T-N\E
E-FERT
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, R, C 190,753 122,561 R: Expiring on 100% N/A Q4CY2014
Yuan Phase 3 Fuzhou City, Jiangxi Province, 31 January 2080
the PRC C: Expiring on
31 January 2050
ENERER=H HEIAEEMT RIMZZNTE TER ZT-NE
SERET66%: —R=t—-HE®W FOFRRT
C:RZZRZE
—A=t+—-HE®
Yichun Royal Lake No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, R, C 607,084 1,047,038 R: Expiring on 50% N/A Phase 3:
City Phase 3-6 Yuanzhou District, Yichun 29 March 2077 Q2CY2016
City, Jiangxi Province, C: Expiring on Phase 4:
the PRC 29 March 2047 Q3CY2017
Phase 5:
Q4CY2018
Phase 6:
Q1CY2020
EEMRR=Z/"E +GEIREEET RIRZTLLE TER  =H:
RMNEREBAE2995 =RAZthAER —ERE
C:RIZMLE F-EERT
ZAZthAER M
b Sl 3
F=FERT
itk
—2-\%
EMFERT
ek
e Sl 223
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Property Portfolio
MEHRE

Site Area Approximate
in respect Planned/ Effective  Percentage
of entire  Actual Gross Group Sold and Expected
Location Type project Floor Area  Tenure Interest Delivered Completion Date
EER
BEEAN R/ ER SEEER AR
3 85 R BEEE FH i Atk RETAAH
(sq. m.) (sq. m.)
(F5K)  (FhK)
FUTURE PROJECTS (continued)
ARER (&)
Leping Project Hushan Meiyuan Reclamation R, C 333,341 394,800  R: Expiring on 51% N/A Phase 1:
Farm, Leping City, 17 June 2074 Q1CY2016
Jiangxi Province, the PRC C: Expiring on Phase 2:
17 June 2044 Q1CY2017
Phase 3:
Q1CY2018
#IER RETRELTM REAZTLEE TEH —8:
RILGERES NATHBEER —ERF
CR-ZAME E-FERT
~ATEBRER —8:
ZTt%
E-FERT
=
—EF-N\F
E-FERT
Hangzhou Project * Southwest junction of C 20,482 81928 NA 100% N/A~ Under planning
Moganshan Road and
Shenhua Road, Gongshu
District, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
MMER * REMTENMMTHER TR TER  FtEld
RTUBRREEREHA
PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT
BERENE
Levels 1and 2 of No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A 4,461 Expiring on 100% N/A Completed
Block 2, Unit 02 to Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
06 on Level 1 of Nanchang City,
Block 6 and a 3-storey Jiangxi Province, the PRC
kindergarten of
Nanchang Honggu
Kaixuan
BB A HEIERERET TaR RZEW=F TaR BRI
“BE-R-E, ARETLE NATRBER
NE—B02E06ER A AKEBI5685:

~HZERHHEE
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Property Portfolio
Y E R

Site Area Approximate
in respect Planned/ Effective  Percentage
of entire  Actual Gross Group Sold and Expected
Location Type project Floor Area  Tenure Interest Delivered Completion Date
EER
EEEAN RE/ER SEEER AR
A 85 R EE BEEE FH B Btk BRETAAH
(sq. m.) (sq. m.)
(FRK)  (Fhk)
PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT (continued)
BlERENE (£)
Unit 02, Level 1103,  No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A 1,218 Expiring on 100% N/A Completed
Sino Harbour Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Kaixuan Center Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
EBIBER L REIAEMETANE TER RZBM=% TER BRI
—ZZE0=E POBAAKES685 NR+RBER
PROPERTIES OCCUPIED BY THE GROUP
HAREEEZNE
No. 8 Commercial No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A 621.55  Expiring on 100% N/A Completed
Building of Nanchang ~ Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Honggu Kaixuan Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
BELAHE HEIIREEET TER RZZM=% TER BRI
ENFBEAE ARETLE NATRBER
ALAKE15683%
Unit 1502 of No. 28 Zhongshan West Road, R N/A 165.8  Expiring on 100% N/A Completed
Entrance B of Xihu District, Nanchang City, June 2069
the South Building of ~ Jiangxi Province, the PRC
Minshi Garden
LEXEGEBET +TEIAEHETANE TER RZZANE TER BRI
1502% LT BR285% ~AER
R: Residential R: *=E
Commercial EES
B The project is partially completed and partially under  “: ZBEHHERTRBHERFEES  FE R
development, and thus appear in both “Completed properties” [BRTITHWE] R [FREFDE] REFRIIR-
and “Properties under development”.
* As at the date of the Annual Report, the Group has not yet  *: RAFRAE AEBE®RIREZ LM 2 i

obtained the land use rights certificate for the land. ERERE-

[FRBIEERBE] R [BHTK AH] DIREER
B HxEMAEL -ZEHTARERBERER
HEw-

The “Planned Gross Floor Area” and "“Expected Completion
Date” are based on the best estimate by the management. These
figures may change as the projects progress.
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